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·1· · · · · · · ·(An opening statement was made by the

·2· ·videographer re the caption of the case; the time;

·3· ·the address of the office location; the name of the

·4· ·videographer and the court reporter.· All counsel

·5· ·identified themselves on the record and stated the

·6· ·parties they represent.)

·7· · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · -· ·-· ·-

·9· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

10· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Good afternoon.· Would you

11· ·please state your name for the record.

12· · · · · ·A· ·Patricia Norton.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·And Mrs. Norton, where do you live?

14· · · · · ·A· ·27 South Front Street, Womelsdorf,

15· ·Pennsylvania, Berks County.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·And that's where we are right now?

17· · · · · ·A· ·That's where we are.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·How long have you lived in this home?

19· · · · · ·A· ·48 years.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·And how long have you lived in Berks

21· ·County?

22· · · · · ·A· ·All my life.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you currently married?

24· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I'm a widow.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have any family who live
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·1· ·nearby?

·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· I have two sons.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And I noticed when I came in, there was

·4· ·a photograph of a young man in, I think, a Navy

·5· ·uniform.

·6· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Who is he?

·8· · · · · ·A· ·He's also my son.· I have trouble with

·9· ·this.· I'm sorry.

10· · · · · · · ·He was in the military, and he was in

11· ·Hong Kong and he got hit by a taxi cab.· And they

12· ·drug him 75 feet and put the car in reverse and

13· ·reversed for 75 feet.

14· · · · · · · ·So he had major surgeries.· He came

15· ·home.· But he was never himself again, and he

16· ·passed away.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·I'm sorry to hear that.

18· · · · · · · ·Do you need a moment?

19· · · · · ·A· ·No.· Go on to something else quickly.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have any grandchildren?

21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I do.· I have a step-granddaughter

22· ·and a granddaughter.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have any

24· ·great-grandchildren?

25· · · · · ·A· ·I have a total of five, four girls and
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·1· ·one boy.

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Congratulations.

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Thank you.

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·I notice you're sitting in a wheelchair

·5· ·right now.· How often do you use a wheelchair?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·Most every day.

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you ever use a walker?

·8· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

·9· · · · · ·Q· ·And how far can you travel using a

10· ·walker?

11· · · · · ·A· ·Half a block -- I'll say half a block.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you drive a car?

13· · · · · ·A· ·No.

14· · · · · ·Q· ·I want to ask you a few questions about

15· ·voting.· Are you currently registered to vote?

16· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I am.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·And how often do you vote?

18· · · · · ·A· ·As often as I can get to the poll.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And where is your polling place?

20· · · · · ·A· ·At the corner of North Front in

21· ·Womelsdorf.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·And what's the building called?

23· · · · · ·A· ·The borough hall.· I'm sorry.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·And when I was driving into town, I saw

25· ·a building at the intersection at the corner of
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·1· ·your block that looked like a government building,

·2· ·is that the borough hall?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, it is.

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And does that building have any

·5· ·steps or other barriers that would keep you from

·6· ·getting there in a wheelchair?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to form.

·8· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It has a ramp.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the term

10· ·"barriers."· Can you rephrase it, please.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Sure.

12· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

13· · · · · ·Q· ·How do you get into that building,

14· ·given that you have a wheelchair?

15· · · · · ·A· ·It has a ramp.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And are you able to use the

17· ·voting machine, even though you're in a wheelchair?

18· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I can.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·And how does that work?

20· · · · · ·A· ·They lower it for me.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·And how do you get from your house to

22· ·borough hall to vote?

23· · · · · ·A· ·Usually someone will drive me there.

24· ·Since it's just down at the corner really,

25· ·sometimes my son will just push me in my
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·1· ·wheelchair.

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And what kind of a wait do you

·3· ·encounter at the polling place to vote?

·4· · · · · ·A· ·Most times it goes very smoothly and I

·5· ·don't have much wait at all.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And do you ever vote by absentee

·7· ·ballot?

·8· · · · · ·A· ·No.

·9· · · · · ·Q· ·And if there were going to be an

10· ·election today, would you be able to -- would you

11· ·be physically able to get to borough hall to vote?

12· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·And today if there were going to be an

14· ·election, would you be able to sign a legal

15· ·declaration saying that you were unable to attend

16· ·because of illness or physical disability?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the form of

18· ·the question.· It's leading.· Rephrase it.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'll rephrase it.

20· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

21· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you currently have an illness that

22· ·would keep you from getting there today if there

23· ·were an election today?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; leading.

25· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· I can rephrase this.

·2· · · · · · · ·If there were an election today, do you

·3· ·think that you would be able to vote in person or

·4· ·not?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; leading.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Can we go off the record

·7· ·for a moment.

·8· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· Going off the

·9· ·record.· Time on video is 14:33.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'm trying to save some

11· ·time here.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· No.· I understand.· But I

13· ·just don't want you to testify for her, so --

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I don't think I am, but is

15· ·there some other way I could ask this question that

16· ·would satisfy you.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· How do you vote?

18· · · · · · · ·What's your health status currently?

19· · · · · · · ·Let her describe it.· That's all I'm

20· ·asking for.· I don't want you to testify.· I don't

21· ·think you want that, either, on the record.· You

22· ·don't want your testimony here.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Nobody wants that.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I appreciate -- I really

25· ·do; I appreciate the fact that you're trying to
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·1· ·expedite things.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Okay.· We'll do it that

·3· ·way, then.

·4· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· We're now back on

·5· ·the record.· Time on video is 14:34.

·6· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Is there any reason that you would feel

·8· ·differently about voting in person versus voting by

·9· ·absentee ballot?

10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

11· · · · · ·Q· ·And what would that be?

12· · · · · ·A· ·I like to vote in person because I want

13· ·to make sure that I'm being counted.· If I would

14· ·send an absentee ballot in, possibly it could get

15· ·lost in the mail.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·I may have already asked you:· How long

17· ·have you been voting at borough hall?

18· · · · · ·A· ·Ever since I lived in Womelsdorf,

19· ·48 years.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you see familiar people when you

21· ·go to vote?

22· · · · · ·A· ·Indeed I do.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, did you vote in the November 2012

24· ·election?

25· · · · · ·A· ·I did.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·And when you went that time, did anyone

·2· ·say anything to you about photo ID?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·We --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; hearsay.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'm not asking her for the

·6· ·truth of the matter asserted.· I'm just asking her

·7· ·whether anybody said anything to her.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Okay.

·9· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

10· · · · · ·Q· ·So you may answer the question.

11· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·I'll repeat it.

13· · · · · · · ·When you went to vote in November of

14· ·last year, did anyone say anything to you about

15· ·photo ID?

16· · · · · ·A· ·I asked them.· They didn't bring it up.

17· ·I asked them.· And at that point they didn't know

18· ·what I would have to do.· They just said I was okay

19· ·then, because I didn't have to have one in

20· ·November.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·And when you say you asked "them," whom

22· ·are you referring to?

23· · · · · ·A· ·What do you --

24· · · · · ·Q· ·The people --

25· · · · · ·A· ·What do you call them?
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you talking about people who were

·2· ·at the borough hall?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·The people who are -- are asking me to

·4· ·sign in.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· The poll workers?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.· There's a good word.· Use that

·7· ·one.· I couldn't think of one.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And what did they say to you about --

·9· ·did they say anything to you about what kind of ID

10· ·you could vote with?

11· · · · · ·A· ·What kind of what?

12· · · · · ·Q· ·Of ID you could vote with.

13· · · · · ·A· ·They asked if I had a --

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; hearsay.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Again, I'm not asking her

16· ·for the truth of the matter.· I'm asking her what

17· ·somebody said to her for its effect on her.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· You asked her what they

19· ·said to her.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Right.· I'm not -- I'm not

21· ·going to offer her testimony about what somebody

22· ·said to her as for the truth of what that person

23· ·said.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I understand that.  I

25· ·think you need to rephrase it.
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·1· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Did you learn anything when you went

·3· ·there that day about what types of photo ID you

·4· ·could use to vote with?

·5· · · · · ·A· ·Well, they did say if I had a passport,

·6· ·I could use that; but I didn't really feel I needed

·7· ·one to go to the corner.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Anything else they told you about, what

·9· ·kind of photo ID?

10· · · · · ·A· ·They asked about a driver's license.

11· ·But every -- see, everybody knows everybody, and

12· ·they all know my situation, you know.· So they

13· ·already know that I can't drive.· I'm not allowed

14· ·to drive because of my physical disabilities.

15· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Well, let me ask you a few more

16· ·questions about your ID situation.

17· · · · · · · ·Have you ever had a Pennsylvania

18· ·driver's license?

19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have one, an active driver's

21· ·license right now?

22· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·When was the last time you had an

24· ·active driver's license?

25· · · · · ·A· ·Back in '95.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.

·2· · · · · ·A· ·1995.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have a U.S. passport?

·4· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have any other ID with your

·6· ·picture on it?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you ever tried to get a new ID

·9· ·from PennDOT?

10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I have.

11· · · · · ·Q· ·When did you do that?

12· · · · · ·A· ·Before the election in November of

13· ·2012.

14· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember how far before the

15· ·election?· Was it a long time before the election

16· ·or --

17· · · · · ·A· ·No.· It was maybe the end of October,

18· ·beginning of November.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And where did you go to do that?

20· · · · · ·A· ·I had to go to Shillington,

21· ·Pennsylvania.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·Is that the nearest PennDOT location?

23· · · · · ·A· ·I guess basically you could go to

24· ·Lebanon.· I'm thinking it's probably six of one and

25· ·half dozen of another.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you know about how far away the

·2· ·Shillington PennDOT location is?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, it takes us about 45 minutes or

·4· ·more to get there, depending, of course, on

·5· ·traffic.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·How did you get there?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·I had friends from Reading come up and

·8· ·pick me up and take me there.· We made a special

·9· ·trip to try to get ID.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·And how far away is Reading from here?

11· · · · · ·A· ·15, 20 miles.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, your two sons that you mentioned,

13· ·do they live here in Womelsdorf?

14· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, they do.

15· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you ever get rides from your

16· ·sons?

17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I do.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And I think you mentioned that

19· ·you've gotten a ride from one son to the polling

20· ·place; is that right?

21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·What about the grocery store?· How do

23· ·you get groceries?

24· · · · · ·A· ·My son shops.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you go to the grocery store too?

http://www.miller-verbano.com


Page 16
·1· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I couldn't tell you the last time

·2· ·I went.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· What about doctors'

·4· ·appointments?· How do you get to doctors'

·5· ·appointments?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·I often have to -- if my son is not

·7· ·available, then I have to call friends who, like I

·8· ·said earlier, have to come all the way up from

·9· ·Reading and take me wherever I need to go.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·Are your sons employed?

11· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, they are.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·And what kind of work do they do or

13· ·where do they work?

14· · · · · ·A· ·My oldest son works at Reading Alloys,

15· ·which is located in Robesonia.· And my youngest

16· ·son -- that's a hard one.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·Maybe I should ask this way:· What kind

18· ·of work does your youngest son do?

19· · · · · ·A· ·He works construction.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·What kind of hours does your son who

21· ·works construction work?

22· · · · · ·A· ·He has horrendous hours.· He oftentimes

23· ·will leave at 4:30, 5 o'clock in the morning and

24· ·doesn't get home until 9 o'clock at night, because

25· ·oftentimes -- I know I'm going on and on; but he
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·1· ·doesn't have one destination.· He may have to go to

·2· ·Jersey.· He may have to go to Timbuktu to work that

·3· ·day.

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And the son who works at Reading

·5· ·Alloys, what kind of hours does he work?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·I believe it's basically from 7:00 to

·7· ·3:00.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And does that son have any family

·9· ·members to take care of?

10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, he does.· His wife at this point

11· ·is in a very bad place to be.· She had a knee

12· ·replaced.· Unfortunately, the knee was faulty, and

13· ·it was infected.· And she had five surgeries in

14· ·less than four months.

15· · · · · · · ·And she -- she's home from the hospital

16· ·now, but she is in bed constantly -- well, the bed

17· ·is in the living room, but she -- she cannot get up

18· ·and walk around.· She must stay in bed.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, your friends from Reading, do

20· ·they -- the ones who drove you to PennDOT that you

21· ·mentioned, do they often give you rides to places?

22· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· They would like to take me a lot

23· ·more places, but they don't fully understand my

24· ·pain situation.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Do any of the people who give
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·1· ·you rides have a vehicle with a wheelchair lift?

·2· · · · · ·A· ·No, they do not.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·So how do you get in and out of the

·4· ·car?

·5· · · · · ·A· ·They put the wheelchair as close to the

·6· ·door as we can.· We have a little stepstool that I

·7· ·step on first, and I kind of back into it.· And I

·8· ·have a cushion that swivels.· You back in and you

·9· ·sit down and swivel yourself into the seat.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And you mentioned that you went

11· ·to the PennDOT location in Shillington; is that

12· ·right?

13· · · · · ·A· ·That's correct.

14· · · · · ·Q· ·Is the process you just described how

15· ·you got in and out of the car on that trip?

16· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, what happened when you went into

18· ·the Shillington PennDOT office?

19· · · · · ·A· ·I told them that I was there to get an

20· ·ID card so I could vote.· And the lady got a paper

21· ·and circled some stuff on this paper and handed me

22· ·the paper.· And she said it would be $13.50.

23· · · · · · · ·And I said, "I was under the impression

24· ·that it was for free."

25· · · · · · · ·But I started to get my money out.· And
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·1· ·she said, "Oh, we don't take cash.· You have to

·2· ·either have a check or a money order."

·3· · · · · · · ·Well, I didn't have either one.· And I

·4· ·asked her, "What's wrong with cash?"· But they

·5· ·don't accept cash.

·6· · · · · · · ·So she told me that -- it's actually in

·7· ·a mall where this PennDOT is.· And she said I could

·8· ·go up to the other end of the mall and get a money

·9· ·order up there, which would entail getting in the

10· ·vehicle, driving up there, getting out, going in,

11· ·coming out, getting back in, and -- it's just too

12· ·much.· I can't do all those things at one time.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·You mentioned a piece of paper, and I

14· ·want to show you a document.· This has been stamped

15· ·for production as Vote-2255 through '56.· It's a

16· ·double-sided, single-paged document.· And I believe

17· ·it's been identified as Trial Exhibit 4130.

18· · · · · · · ·Would you look at this document for a

19· ·moment.

20· · · · · ·A· ·Uh-huh.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·Is this the paper form you were

22· ·referring to?

23· · · · · ·A· ·That's it.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·And I noticed there's some circles and

25· ·an X written on this page.
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Who wrote those?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·The lady down there did.

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Did you get a new ID card on

·5· ·that visit?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·No, I did not.

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you subsequently gotten any

·8· ·new ID card?

·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·You mentioned that you were -- I think

11· ·you said you were under the impression that you

12· ·could get one for free?

13· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.

14· · · · · ·Q· ·What made you think that you could get

15· ·one for free?

16· · · · · ·A· ·I heard it on TV.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you ever seen any

18· ·advertisements about the voter ID law?

19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you remember when you saw those

21· ·advertisements?

22· · · · · ·A· ·Well, prior to me going and trying to

23· ·get one.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Have you seen any since the

25· ·November elections?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·I don't believe I have.

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you heard of something called

·3· ·the Department of State ID card?

·4· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I have no idea what that is.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever had your driving

·6· ·privileges suspended or revoked or disqualified?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·No.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·When was the last time you drove,

·9· ·roughly?

10· · · · · ·A· ·Back in -- probably '94.

11· · · · · ·Q· ·What did you think when the clerk told

12· ·you that it would cost 13.50 to get a new ID card?

13· · · · · ·A· ·Well, at first I thought, Well, I guess

14· ·I heard wrong.· But then I said to her, "I thought

15· ·they said on TV that it was free."

16· · · · · · · ·And she was -- she was not a happy

17· ·helper.· She -- it was basically like, take it or

18· ·leave it.· This is the way it is.· Do you want it

19· ·or don't you?· That's the feeling I got.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· How long did this whole trip

21· ·take, from when you left your house to when you got

22· ·back into your house?

23· · · · · ·A· ·I would say a little more than two

24· ·hours.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And how did you feel when you
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·1· ·got home?

·2· · · · · ·A· ·I was in great pain.· I have a lot of

·3· ·difficulty sitting and getting around.· So --

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you gone back to the

·5· ·Shillington PennDOT to try again since then?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·And why not?

·8· · · · · ·A· ·I guess I was just very frustrated,

·9· ·because it was a painful trip and she was not a

10· ·pleasant, happy helper.· And I guess probably in

11· ·the back of my mind I thought, well, perhaps one

12· ·day when -- like when I have a doctor visit

13· ·scheduled, maybe we can do two things in the same

14· ·day.

15· · · · · ·Q· ·Has there ever been an occasion like

16· ·that since then?

17· · · · · ·A· ·Actually, no.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have access to the Internet?

19· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever used the Internet?

21· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you ever go to a public library?

23· · · · · ·A· ·Not any longer.· I used to be able to

24· ·get up to the one here in Womelsdorf, but I can't

25· ·go that far anymore.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Is voting important to you?

·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, it is.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Could you tell me why.

·4· · · · · ·A· ·I think it should be important to all

·5· ·of us.· We all have a stake in what's going on in

·6· ·our life, and we need to respect the people who

·7· ·went before us and went through all kinds of grief

·8· ·to give us that right.· We need to take advantage

·9· ·of it.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Thank you.· I have no more

11· ·questions at this time.· I reserve the right to

12· ·redirect examination.

13· · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

14· ·BY MR. SCHMIDT:

15· · · · · ·Q· ·Good afternoon, Ms. Norton.· My name is

16· ·Kevin Schmidt.· I just have a few follow-up

17· ·questions.

18· · · · · · · ·Ma'am, how did you become a witness in

19· ·this lawsuit?

20· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry.· I didn't hear you.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·How did you become a witness in this

22· ·lawsuit?

23· · · · · ·A· ·I don't know.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·Did someone call you on the telephone?

25· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· And we discussed the difficulty
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·1· ·of not being able to get an ID and -- it was a

·2· ·young lady that I talked with.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember her name, ma'am?

·4· · · · · ·A· ·No.· That I don't remember.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember how she identified

·6· ·herself?· Where she was from?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·No, I don't.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Did she tell you she was with any

·9· ·organization, like the League of Women's Voters,

10· ·for example?

11· · · · · ·A· ·I don't believe she said that.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·What did you tell her during your

13· ·conversation?

14· · · · · ·A· ·That I was trying to get an ID and I

15· ·was having difficulty doing it.· And then she asked

16· ·what I meant I was having -- because apparently it

17· ·should not be this difficult.

18· · · · · · · ·And so I told her what I've just told

19· ·you people about what I went through and how I

20· ·tried to get one.· And then she asked if I would

21· ·talk to this young man.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·That's Attorney Geffen sitting to my

23· ·left?

24· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·At any time during your conversation,
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·1· ·did anyone offer to help you get identification to

·2· ·vote?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, they didn't actually say, Would

·4· ·you like me to come and get you and take you

·5· ·somewhere or something like that.· Nothing like

·6· ·that happened.

·7· · · · · · · ·But she did say that he would talk with

·8· ·me and perhaps we could get some things

·9· ·straightened out.· I'm trying to remember how she

10· ·worded it, you know.· It's difficult.

11· · · · · · · ·But anyway...

12· · · · · ·Q· ·But no one during that conversation

13· ·provided you an offer of assistance to get an

14· ·identification to vote?

15· · · · · ·A· ·No, not really, no.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·How about in your conversation with

17· ·Attorney Geffen?· Was there any offer of assistance

18· ·to get identification to vote?

19· · · · · ·A· ·Well, he discussed what we're doing

20· ·now, sitting and talking about it and kind of

21· ·airing my problems to see if we can't come up with

22· ·an answer, because there's a lot of people in the

23· ·same spot I'm in that you just -- you people who

24· ·drive, we don't -- when you can drive, you don't

25· ·think about it.· You just do it.· You hop in and

http://www.miller-verbano.com


Page 26
·1· ·you go.

·2· · · · · · · ·And you don't understand the problems

·3· ·it creates when you can't do that.· You hate to be

·4· ·imposing on people.· People will say to you,

·5· ·"Anything I can do to help?"· But nothing is handy.

·6· ·Nothing is local.· We don't have a taxicab.· We

·7· ·don't have a bus.· I mean, if we had a bus, I

·8· ·wouldn't be able to take a bus, you know.

·9· · · · · · · ·It's -- I have to depend on other

10· ·people for everything, and I'm a stand-on-your-own

11· ·kind of guy.· And it's very -- it's tough for me to

12· ·ask people for help, even though I know, if they

13· ·can, if they're available, they're more than happy

14· ·to do it.· But I hate imposing on people.

15· · · · · ·Q· ·So you have opportunities for people to

16· ·help you, like your sons and --

17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·Hopefully when your daughter-in-law

19· ·heals up, she'll be able to help you as well;

20· ·correct?

21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

22· · · · · ·Q· ·At any time during your conversations

23· ·with your involvement in this lawsuit as a witness,

24· ·did anybody offer you assistance to help get an ID?

25· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I assume that that's what our
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·1· ·meeting today is, to help me be able to get aimed

·2· ·in the right direction.· I mean, nobody actually

·3· ·has come to me and said, Oh, it's simple.· All you

·4· ·have to do is thus and so.· Nobody has done that,

·5· ·no.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·What's your understanding of why you're

·7· ·testifying today?

·8· · · · · ·A· ·Well, hopefully to makes things easier

·9· ·for everybody that has this type of a problem, to

10· ·make it more accessible.· I mean, when you're on TV

11· ·telling me I need to have a voter ID, tell me right

12· ·then and there where to go and how to get it.· That

13· ·would be helpful.

14· · · · · · · ·If I knew exactly where -- I mean, we

15· ·went to PennDOT, but that was a suggestion from my

16· ·friends.· "Why don't we try going there?"· We

17· ·weren't even sure that it was possible.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·And did any of that information come

19· ·out to you in your conversations with Attorney

20· ·Geffen or the woman who called you in advance of

21· ·Attorney Geffen about where to go, about what to do

22· ·to get an ID, about how they could help you?

23· · · · · ·A· ·No.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·Ms. Norton, what is the furthest you

25· ·travel from your home here in Womelsdorf?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·To the doctor's, which is at the --

·2· ·basically at the Reading Hospital.· So that's 15,

·3· ·20 miles, whatever it is.

·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And how long does that take you to get

·5· ·there?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·Three quarters of an hour to an hour,

·7· ·depending on the traffic.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· So is it fair to say you don't

·9· ·have any problem traveling in a car for an hour?

10· · · · · ·A· ·I have problems, because it's very

11· ·painful for me to sit.· And pain really rules your

12· ·life, you know.· So -- but I get there.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·You can do it, is what you're telling

14· ·me?

15· · · · · · · ·Now, during the course of your day, do

16· ·you have to stand up with your walker?

17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

18· · · · · ·Q· ·Or do you predominantly stay in your

19· ·wheelchair for the course of the day?

20· · · · · ·A· ·Mostly I scoot around in my chair.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·What are the ages of your sons?

22· · · · · ·A· ·40 and 50.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·And you said you had a

24· ·step-granddaughter and a granddaughter; is that

25· ·correct?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And what are their ages?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, my granddaughter is 25.· And I'm

·4· ·going to guess at the step-granddaughter.· I'm

·5· ·going to guess that she's probably 35.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Do they live local as well?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·At this point in time, I have no idea

·8· ·where my granddaughter lives.· My

·9· ·step-granddaughter lives in Womelsdorf.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·And does she drive?

11· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

12· · · · · ·Q· ·And does she ever offer to drive you

13· ·around and take you places?

14· · · · · ·A· ·No.

15· · · · · ·Q· ·How come?

16· · · · · ·A· ·She's got three girls, and she works.

17· ·And the girls are all -- you know, there is dance

18· ·classes.· There's this, that, and the other thing.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·Oh, I know.· I know.· I have a son and

20· ·a daughter that I cart around myself.

21· · · · · ·A· ·So you know you spend half your life in

22· ·a vehicle.

23· · · · · ·Q· ·So the last time you attempted to go --

24· ·excuse me.· Strike that.

25· · · · · · · ·The last time you went to PennDOT was
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·1· ·in late October of 2012; is that correct, ma'am?

·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And you went to the Shillington

·4· ·driver's licensing center?

·5· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you made any efforts since that

·7· ·time to go back and try and get an identification

·8· ·card to vote?

·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.· Would you like to know

10· ·the reason?

11· · · · · ·Q· ·Let me ask you another question.

12· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever called PennDOT to see if

14· ·you can get special accommodations for your pain

15· ·and because you're in a wheelchair now?

16· · · · · ·A· ·No, I haven't.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever called PennDOT to ask

18· ·them if you could send information through the mail

19· ·so that you didn't have to travel to a driver's

20· ·licensing center and get --

21· · · · · ·A· ·No, I haven't done that.· I assume you

22· ·have to be there if you're -- you have to get a

23· ·picture taken.

24· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you willing to do that, ma'am?

25· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I was there thinking that's what
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·1· ·would -- you know, that it was going to -- she was

·2· ·going to say, "Okay.· I'll take your picture.

·3· ·Here's your thing and be on your way."· But it

·4· ·didn't pan out that way.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you willing to call them back and

·6· ·see if they could make accommodations for you --

·7· ·"they" being PennDOT -- so that you could get an

·8· ·identification card to vote?

·9· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· I imagine that's what I'll have

10· ·to do.· But the past -- this past year has been

11· ·very difficult for me.· I've had many, many falls.

12· ·And I've in turn had setbacks.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·When is your next doctor's appointment,

14· ·ma'am?

15· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry?

16· · · · · ·Q· ·When is your next doctor's appointment?

17· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I was just there in June -- three

18· ·months.

19· · · · · ·Q· ·So would that be September?

20· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

21· · · · · ·Q· ·September?· Okay.

22· · · · · · · ·And do you know how you'll get to your

23· ·doctor's appointment in September?

24· · · · · ·A· ·Probably I'll have to ask my friends

25· ·from Reading to come and get me, because
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·1· ·unfortunately, the boys can't take me because they

·2· ·work.

·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And these are the same friends that

·4· ·took you to the Shillington driver licensing

·5· ·center?

·6· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, yes.

·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Do you think that they would be

·8· ·willing to do so again, ma'am?

·9· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·Ma'am, has any doctor prohibited you

11· ·from traveling by car?

12· · · · · ·A· ·No.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·Has any doctor placed any physical

14· ·restrictions on you?

15· · · · · ·A· ·They tell me to do what I can, what

16· ·little I can do.· Try to keep moving.

17· · · · · ·Q· ·Is there any -- have they ever advised

18· ·you to not sit for a certain amount of time or not

19· ·stand for a certain amount of time?

20· · · · · ·A· ·Oh, yeah, they always tell me that.

21· ·You know, it's -- I spend most of my day laying

22· ·either on the sofa or on my bed, because sitting is

23· ·extremely painful for me.· I have rods and pins in

24· ·my back, and it's not really conducive to sitting.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·Ma'am, I want you to take a look at
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·1· ·that document that Attorney Geffen showed to you

·2· ·earlier, which has been previously marked as

·3· ·Vote-2255; and the second page of it has Vote-2256.

·4· · · · · · · ·Is your name on there, ma'am?

·5· · · · · ·A· ·No.

·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Did you ever start to fill it out,

·7· ·assuming this is the document you got when you went

·8· ·to PennDOT in Shillington?

·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I didn't fill anything out, because

10· ·we couldn't conclude our business because I didn't

11· ·have a check or a money order.· I only had cash.

12· ·So I didn't bother filling the paperwork out.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·So is it fair to say that none of the

14· ·writing on the document is yours?

15· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you know whose it is?

17· · · · · ·A· ·I have no idea.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I have nothing further,

19· ·ma'am.· Thank you very much.

20· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You're welcome.

21· · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

22· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

23· · · · · ·Q· ·I have just a few questions to follow

24· ·up on some of the things Mr. Schmidt discussed.

25· · · · · · · ·At one point Mr. Schmidt asked you a
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·1· ·question:· Why haven't you made another attempt to

·2· ·go back to PennDOT?· And it sounded like there was

·3· ·something you wanted to say.· What is it that you

·4· ·wanted to say?

·5· · · · · ·A· ·I thought I did say it.· I've had many

·6· ·falls, and I've been set back in my abilities to

·7· ·get in and out.

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And that all happened since the last

·9· ·time you went to PennDOT?

10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.

11· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And you mentioned a three-month

12· ·doctor appointment.· Do you regularly visit the

13· ·doctor once every three months?· Is that how I

14· ·should take that?

15· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· That's my back doctor.

16· · · · · ·Q· ·And are there other doctors you go to

17· ·on a regular basis?

18· · · · · ·A· ·My family doctor, whatever you want to

19· ·call him.

20· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· How do you feel after you get

21· ·home from one of those doctor's appointments?

22· · · · · ·A· ·Totally wiped out, exhausted, in pain.

23· ·You come in the door; you grab your pills and you

24· ·crash and burn.

25· · · · · ·Q· ·And how often when you have one of
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·1· ·those doctor's appointments do you tack on an

·2· ·additional errand while you're out and about?

·3· · · · · ·A· ·Very rarely.· It's like, let's get

·4· ·there and get home as fast as we can.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And --

·6· · · · · ·A· ·I didn't even do -- I know nobody

·7· ·cares, but I didn't do one bit of Christmas

·8· ·shopping, not one.· Because I just -- I'm just not

·9· ·up to it.

10· · · · · ·Q· ·I understand.

11· · · · · · · ·The last thing I wanted to ask you

12· ·about, Mr. Schmidt asked you:· Did you know whose

13· ·writing was on this form, this exhibit that we

14· ·showed you?

15· · · · · · · ·Do you know that -- do you know the

16· ·name of any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with

17· ·that day?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the form of

19· ·the question; assumes facts not on the record.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I asked her whether she

21· ·knows any -- I'll ask her this question.

22· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:

23· · · · · ·Q· ·When you went to PennDOT in November or

24· ·October of last year, did you catch the names of

25· ·any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I don't think she bothered

·2· ·introducing herself.· You knew who she was.· She

·3· ·said, "Next."· You went up and you told her what

·4· ·you wanted, and that was the end of our business.

·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And who gave you this form that

·6· ·we've been looking at?

·7· · · · · ·A· ·The lady who was -- said "next."

·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And who wrote these circles and X on

·9· ·this form?

10· · · · · ·A· ·She did.

11· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· But you don't know her name?

12· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have no idea what her name was.

13· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· I have no more questions.

14· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.

15· · · · · · · · · ·RECROSS-EXAMINATION

16· ·BY MR. SCHMIDT:

17· · · · · ·Q· ·Ms. Norton, just one question.· Did you

18· ·see her make these marks on the form?

19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I did.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Okay.· No further

21· ·questions.· Thank you very much.

22· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You're welcome.

23· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· This concludes the

24· ·videotaped deposition of Patricia Norton.· Time on

25· ·video is 15:07.

http://www.miller-verbano.com


Page 37
·1· ·(Videotaped deposition concluded

·2· ·at 15:07 p.m.)
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·1· · · · · · CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER

·2

·3· · · · · · · ·I, Gail Inghram Verbano, Registered

·4· ·Diplomate Reporter, Certified Realtime Reporter,

·5· ·Certified Shorthand Reporter (CA) and Notary

·6· ·Public, the officer before whom the foregoing

·7· ·proceedings were taken, do hereby certify that the

·8· ·foregoing transcript is a true and correct record

·9· ·of the proceedings; that said proceedings were

10· ·taken by me stenographically and thereafter reduced

11· ·to typewriting under my supervision; and that I am

12· ·neither counsel for, related to, nor employed by

13· ·any of the parties to this case and have no

14· ·interest, financial or otherwise, in its outcome.

15
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H O T 0  IDENTIFICATION CARD pennsylvania Bureau of Drlver Ucenslng 


P.O. Box 68272 
B I P A R ~ Y E M T  OF IRAIISPORTAT10(1 Harrisburg. PA 17106-8272 


1"" PA I"'"" I 


I I 1 I I 


If this is a change of address and you are o registered voter in PA, would nYES uNO It you are not a registered voter. you may 
you like us to notify your county ~ t w  reglstratlon office of this change? contact your county voter registration office. 


- - 


) Do you hold a cu~entlvalld out-of-state driver's Ifcense? DYES UNO If yes, you must surrender your out-of-state valid license. 


I R I CHECK APPLICABLE BLOCK BELOW: (FEE INFO. 


m~om~w-chac*o110~ CJBW OBROWN 0- IJwa Om Osll~l h 01- UOTHBI 
CURRENT ADDRESS - A pod onko Box numbor mq be 4 In .ddnton to Uw -1 mddmm oddreu, bul cmmt be usad as  he only ad-. 


mnLOOREBB 


1 - 1  I I -  I I I 


- - -- - - -  - 


1. I HAVE NEVER HELD A PENNSYLVANIA DRIVER'S LICENSE OR IDENTIFICATION CARD AND I AM APPLYING FOR AN 
INITIAL PHOTO IDENIlFlCATlON CARD. (You must apply In person at any Drlver Llcensa Center.) 1 $13.50 1 


I I 


2. I CURRENTLY HOLD A PENNSYLVANIA DRIVER'S LICENSE AND AM APPLYING FOR A NON-DRIVER PHOTO I IDENTIFICATION CARD FOR THE FOLLOWING REISON: I I 
I am s u m n ~ ~ n g  my Wring pdvilege tor heatth reasons that may affect my ab l l i l  to safety operate a motor vet~icie. I FREE I I u ~ ~ N ~ i - w i U n g t D . ( * I . U * I I I I I ~ ~ t e ~ - p ~ t e e ~ ~ ~ . ~ ~ ~ D m ~ t  I 
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OMortgage Documents ULease Agreements dW-2  Form OTax R e c a d s  AND IDENllTY 


O C u m t  Weapons Permit (for U.S. Citizens Only) OOVler 0 B i N  Certificate 


OCunent Utility Bills m t e r ,  Ogas, nelectric, m b l e )  -I- w-orsmmt ESCCFWS 0 Other 


@ 


- 
months as required by 67 pi. code 933. It is inderstwd that I will notbe permitted to apply for my driver's llceke. 
CI-4 through M inciusive. for a period of 91.. months. w t t a   river's License/ ~eamer's ~ermit.) A VOLUNTARY 
SURRENDER WILL NOT BE ACCEFTED AS CREDIT TOWARD A WSF'ENSION. RECALL, CANCUTION. OR REV0CAM)N. 
As a result of my parent's or guardian's withdrawal of consent for mo to drive a motor vehicle (Attach Driver's U c e n d  
Learner's Permit.) PLEASE NOTE: A DL-100A MUST ACCOHPANV THIS APPLICATION. 


0 As a result of the suspenai0n of my driver's license. LIcense MUST be attached. If not, y w  MUST complete the 
- 


drivlng prlvilage Is s u s p e n d e d l r e v ~ k ~ d i ~ l i i i e d  in Pennsylvania and my 


Lost 0 Stolen Mutilated 
- How? 


C. License ksued by Pennsylvania has been surrendered to or confiscated by the Pollce/Court. 
Whm? What Police DepartmentComty7 


D. Ucense issued by Pewsylvanla has besn pmvbdy slorenderad b PemUOT to serve an existing paiod of wpensb~. 
When? Why were you suspended? 


3. I DESIRE TO HOLD A PHOTO IDENTIFICAT~ON CARD ALONG wm MY PENNSYLVANIA DRIVERS LICENSE. 


$1 3-50 


$1 3.50 


$1 3.50 
CERTlFlCATlON (SION AND ENTER DATE OF APPLICATION) 
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I am under  he ngo of 18 yenrs end I hemby requast Organ ~cnor  dasignaUon 
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DL-54A (12-10) The most current version of this form can be found at: www.dmv.state.pa.us 


APPLICANT INFORMATION 
You must be at least 10 years of age or older to obtain a Pennsylvania Photo Identification Card. 


If you are under 18 years of age your parent. guardian, person in loco parentis, or spouse who is 18 years of age or older must 
accompany you. Proper ldentification is required and if the last names are different, verification of relationship is needed. 


Out-of-State Address Change: We may not issue driver license products to an out-of-state address, except in the case of an 
employee of the federal or state government, armed forces personnel, and immediate members of their families, whose workplace 
is located outside of Pennsylvania. If this exception applies to you, please check the appropriate box and include documentation of 
your status with this application. Attach a letter from your employer on their letterhead to document your status, or attach a copy of 
your current Photo ID issued by your employer. If you are the immediate family of a person meeting on of the allowable exceptions, 
attach the documentation of the person employed. Additionally, you must indicate your relationship to that person. 


I certify that my workplace is located out-of-state and I am employed by, or am the immediate family of a person employed by: 
US Armed Forces Federal Government Pennsylvania State Government 


Relationship to person meeting exemption (check one): Spouse Dependent Child 


SECTIONS A, B & C MUST BE COMPLETED IN THEIR ENTIRm. P W S E  TYPE OR PRINT IN BLUE OR BLACK INK ALL INFORMATION. 
If you checked Block 1 in Section B, you must apply in person at a Driver Ucense Center with the identity and residency documents 
listed below. If you are under 18 years of age, your parent, guardian. person in loco parentis, or spouse who is 18 years of age or older 
must accompany you. Pmper identification Is required and if the last names are different, verification of relationship is needed. PLEASE 
NOTE: Driver License Centers do not accept cash or credit cards. You must pay by check or money order. 


If you checked Block 2 or Block 3 in Section B, you can mail your completed and signed application, along wlth your check or money 
order payable to 'PennDOT', to the: Bureau of Driver Licensing, RO. Box 68272, Harrisburg, PA 17106-8272. 


I TO MEET IDENTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS You MUST Present the Followlng: 


U.S. CITIZENS 
Social Security Card (card cannot be laminated) AND QNE of the following: 


Birth Certificate with raised seal (U.S. issued by an authorized oveinment agency, lncludlng U.S. territories or 
Puerto Rico. Non-U.S. Birth Certificates will not be accepted$ 


* Certificate of U.S. Citizenshlp (USCIS Form N-560) 
Certificate of Naturalization (USCIS Fonn N-550 or N-570) 
Valid U.S. Passport 


+ If you have an Out-of-State Driver's Llcense, i t  must be presented wlth one of the above forms of identification. 
NOTE: ONLY VALID PASSPORTS AND ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED. If  the name on your original 
document differs from your current name, you must provide an original Marriage Certificate, Divorce Decree, or Court 
Order document. 


NON-U.S. CITIZENS 
Bring All of the iollowlng: 


Social Security Card, or letter from SSA indicating that SSA did not make a decision yet, or SSA rejection letter 
Valid Passport 
All original (USCIS) documents 
Written verification of attendance from school (Student Status Only) 
Written verification from employer (Employment Status Only) 


To obtain detailed information regarding "identity/residency requirements', you can: 
Vislt www.dmv.state.Da.us 
Call us at 1-800-932-4600 or 1-800-228-0676 (TDD). Mondav thmuclh Fridav from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 am. 


TO MEET RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS You MUST Present TWO of the Following [for customers 18 years of aae or older): 


Lease Agreements Mortgage Documents Current Weapons Permit 
(for U. S. Citizens Only) 


Current Utility Bills (water, gas, electric, cable, etc.) W-2 Form 
*Cellular/mobile or pager bills are not acceptable Tax Records 


Note: If you reside with someone, and have no bills in your name, you will still need to provide two proofs of residency. One proof 
is to bring ttie person with whom you reside along with their Driver's Ucense or Photo ID to the Driver License Center. You will also 
need to provide a second proof of resldency such as official mal (bank statement, tax notice, magazine, etc.) that has your name 
and address on it. The address must match that of the penon with whom you reside. 


Organ Donor Awareness Wust Fund (ODTF): You have the opportunity to contribute $1.00 to the fund. The additional $1.00 
contribution must be added to the $13.50 fee and included in your payment by check or money order. 


The department is required to obtain the Licensee's Social Security number, height and eye color under the provisions of Sections 
1510(a) andlor 1609(a)(4) of the Pennsylvania Vehicle Code. This information will be used as identifying information in an attempt to 
minimize driver license fraud. Federal law permits the use of the Social Security number by state licensing officials for purposes of 
identification. 
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               7             By Mr. Schmidt (Recross)                36



               8
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              10
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              14
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              21



              22



              23



              24
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               1               (An opening statement was made by the



               2   videographer re the caption of the case; the time;



               3   the address of the office location; the name of the



               4   videographer and the court reporter.  All counsel



               5   identified themselves on the record and stated the



               6   parties they represent.)



               7                    DIRECT EXAMINATION



               8                        -   -   -



               9   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              10           Q   Okay.  Good afternoon.  Would you



              11   please state your name for the record.



              12           A   Patricia Norton.



              13           Q   And Mrs. Norton, where do you live?



              14           A   27 South Front Street, Womelsdorf,



              15   Pennsylvania, Berks County.



              16           Q   And that's where we are right now?



              17           A   That's where we are.



              18           Q   How long have you lived in this home?



              19           A   48 years.



              20           Q   And how long have you lived in Berks



              21   County?



              22           A   All my life.



              23           Q   Are you currently married?



              24           A   No.  I'm a widow.



              25           Q   And do you have any family who live
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               1   nearby?



               2           A   Yes.  I have two sons.



               3           Q   And I noticed when I came in, there was



               4   a photograph of a young man in, I think, a Navy



               5   uniform.



               6           A   Yes.



               7           Q   Who is he?



               8           A   He's also my son.  I have trouble with



               9   this.  I'm sorry.



              10               He was in the military, and he was in



              11   Hong Kong and he got hit by a taxi cab.  And they



              12   drug him 75 feet and put the car in reverse and



              13   reversed for 75 feet.



              14               So he had major surgeries.  He came



              15   home.  But he was never himself again, and he



              16   passed away.



              17           Q   I'm sorry to hear that.



              18               Do you need a moment?



              19           A   No.  Go on to something else quickly.



              20           Q   Do you have any grandchildren?



              21           A   Yes, I do.  I have a step-granddaughter



              22   and a granddaughter.



              23           Q   And do you have any



              24   great-grandchildren?



              25           A   I have a total of five, four girls and
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               1   one boy.



               2           Q   Congratulations.



               3           A   Thank you.



               4           Q   I notice you're sitting in a wheelchair



               5   right now.  How often do you use a wheelchair?



               6           A   Most every day.



               7           Q   Do you ever use a walker?



               8           A   Yes.



               9           Q   And how far can you travel using a



              10   walker?



              11           A   Half a block -- I'll say half a block.



              12           Q   And do you drive a car?



              13           A   No.



              14           Q   I want to ask you a few questions about



              15   voting.  Are you currently registered to vote?



              16           A   Yes, I am.



              17           Q   And how often do you vote?



              18           A   As often as I can get to the poll.



              19           Q   Okay.  And where is your polling place?



              20           A   At the corner of North Front in



              21   Womelsdorf.



              22           Q   And what's the building called?



              23           A   The borough hall.  I'm sorry.



              24           Q   And when I was driving into town, I saw



              25   a building at the intersection at the corner of
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               1   your block that looked like a government building,



               2   is that the borough hall?



               3           A   Yes, it is.



               4           Q   Okay.  And does that building have any



               5   steps or other barriers that would keep you from



               6   getting there in a wheelchair?



               7               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to form.



               8               THE WITNESS:  It has a ramp.



               9               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the term



              10   "barriers."  Can you rephrase it, please.



              11               MR. GEFFEN:  Sure.



              12   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              13           Q   How do you get into that building,



              14   given that you have a wheelchair?



              15           A   It has a ramp.



              16           Q   Okay.  And are you able to use the



              17   voting machine, even though you're in a wheelchair?



              18           A   Yes, I can.



              19           Q   And how does that work?



              20           A   They lower it for me.



              21           Q   And how do you get from your house to



              22   borough hall to vote?



              23           A   Usually someone will drive me there.



              24   Since it's just down at the corner really,



              25   sometimes my son will just push me in my
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               1   wheelchair.



               2           Q   Okay.  And what kind of a wait do you



               3   encounter at the polling place to vote?



               4           A   Most times it goes very smoothly and I



               5   don't have much wait at all.



               6           Q   Okay.  And do you ever vote by absentee



               7   ballot?



               8           A   No.



               9           Q   And if there were going to be an



              10   election today, would you be able to -- would you



              11   be physically able to get to borough hall to vote?



              12           A   Yes.



              13           Q   And today if there were going to be an



              14   election, would you be able to sign a legal



              15   declaration saying that you were unable to attend



              16   because of illness or physical disability?



              17               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the form of



              18   the question.  It's leading.  Rephrase it.



              19               MR. GEFFEN:  I'll rephrase it.



              20   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              21           Q   Do you currently have an illness that



              22   would keep you from getting there today if there



              23   were an election today?



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; leading.



              25   BY MR. GEFFEN:
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               1           Q   Okay.  I can rephrase this.



               2               If there were an election today, do you



               3   think that you would be able to vote in person or



               4   not?



               5               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; leading.



               6               MR. GEFFEN:  Can we go off the record



               7   for a moment.



               8               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Going off the



               9   record.  Time on video is 14:33.



              10               MR. GEFFEN:  I'm trying to save some



              11   time here.



              12               MR. SCHMIDT:  No.  I understand.  But I



              13   just don't want you to testify for her, so --



              14               MR. GEFFEN:  I don't think I am, but is



              15   there some other way I could ask this question that



              16   would satisfy you.



              17               MR. SCHMIDT:  How do you vote?



              18               What's your health status currently?



              19               Let her describe it.  That's all I'm



              20   asking for.  I don't want you to testify.  I don't



              21   think you want that, either, on the record.  You



              22   don't want your testimony here.



              23               MR. GEFFEN:  Nobody wants that.



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  I appreciate -- I really



              25   do; I appreciate the fact that you're trying to
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               1   expedite things.



               2               MR. GEFFEN:  Okay.  We'll do it that



               3   way, then.



               4               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We're now back on



               5   the record.  Time on video is 14:34.



               6   BY MR. GEFFEN:



               7           Q   Is there any reason that you would feel



               8   differently about voting in person versus voting by



               9   absentee ballot?



              10           A   Yes.



              11           Q   And what would that be?



              12           A   I like to vote in person because I want



              13   to make sure that I'm being counted.  If I would



              14   send an absentee ballot in, possibly it could get



              15   lost in the mail.



              16           Q   I may have already asked you:  How long



              17   have you been voting at borough hall?



              18           A   Ever since I lived in Womelsdorf,



              19   48 years.



              20           Q   And do you see familiar people when you



              21   go to vote?



              22           A   Indeed I do.



              23           Q   Now, did you vote in the November 2012



              24   election?



              25           A   I did.
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               1           Q   And when you went that time, did anyone



               2   say anything to you about photo ID?



               3           A   We --



               4               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; hearsay.



               5               MR. GEFFEN:  I'm not asking her for the



               6   truth of the matter asserted.  I'm just asking her



               7   whether anybody said anything to her.



               8               MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.



               9   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              10           Q   So you may answer the question.



              11           A   I'm sorry.



              12           Q   I'll repeat it.



              13               When you went to vote in November of



              14   last year, did anyone say anything to you about



              15   photo ID?



              16           A   I asked them.  They didn't bring it up.



              17   I asked them.  And at that point they didn't know



              18   what I would have to do.  They just said I was okay



              19   then, because I didn't have to have one in



              20   November.



              21           Q   And when you say you asked "them," whom



              22   are you referring to?



              23           A   What do you --



              24           Q   The people --



              25           A   What do you call them?
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               1           Q   Are you talking about people who were



               2   at the borough hall?



               3           A   The people who are -- are asking me to



               4   sign in.



               5           Q   Okay.  The poll workers?



               6           A   Okay.  There's a good word.  Use that



               7   one.  I couldn't think of one.



               8           Q   And what did they say to you about --



               9   did they say anything to you about what kind of ID



              10   you could vote with?



              11           A   What kind of what?



              12           Q   Of ID you could vote with.



              13           A   They asked if I had a --



              14               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; hearsay.



              15               MR. GEFFEN:  Again, I'm not asking her



              16   for the truth of the matter.  I'm asking her what



              17   somebody said to her for its effect on her.



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  You asked her what they



              19   said to her.



              20               MR. GEFFEN:  Right.  I'm not -- I'm not



              21   going to offer her testimony about what somebody



              22   said to her as for the truth of what that person



              23   said.



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  I understand that.  I



              25   think you need to rephrase it.
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               1   BY MR. GEFFEN:



               2           Q   Did you learn anything when you went



               3   there that day about what types of photo ID you



               4   could use to vote with?



               5           A   Well, they did say if I had a passport,



               6   I could use that; but I didn't really feel I needed



               7   one to go to the corner.



               8           Q   Anything else they told you about, what



               9   kind of photo ID?



              10           A   They asked about a driver's license.



              11   But every -- see, everybody knows everybody, and



              12   they all know my situation, you know.  So they



              13   already know that I can't drive.  I'm not allowed



              14   to drive because of my physical disabilities.



              15           Q   Okay.  Well, let me ask you a few more



              16   questions about your ID situation.



              17               Have you ever had a Pennsylvania



              18   driver's license?



              19           A   Yes.



              20           Q   And do you have one, an active driver's



              21   license right now?



              22           A   No, I do not.



              23           Q   When was the last time you had an



              24   active driver's license?



              25           A   Back in '95.
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               1           Q   Okay.



               2           A   1995.



               3           Q   And do you have a U.S. passport?



               4           A   No, I do not.



               5           Q   Do you have any other ID with your



               6   picture on it?



               7           A   No, I do not.



               8           Q   And have you ever tried to get a new ID



               9   from PennDOT?



              10           A   Yes, I have.



              11           Q   When did you do that?



              12           A   Before the election in November of



              13   2012.



              14           Q   Do you remember how far before the



              15   election?  Was it a long time before the election



              16   or --



              17           A   No.  It was maybe the end of October,



              18   beginning of November.



              19           Q   Okay.  And where did you go to do that?



              20           A   I had to go to Shillington,



              21   Pennsylvania.



              22           Q   Is that the nearest PennDOT location?



              23           A   I guess basically you could go to



              24   Lebanon.  I'm thinking it's probably six of one and



              25   half dozen of another.
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               1           Q   Do you know about how far away the



               2   Shillington PennDOT location is?



               3           A   Well, it takes us about 45 minutes or



               4   more to get there, depending, of course, on



               5   traffic.



               6           Q   How did you get there?



               7           A   I had friends from Reading come up and



               8   pick me up and take me there.  We made a special



               9   trip to try to get ID.



              10           Q   And how far away is Reading from here?



              11           A   15, 20 miles.



              12           Q   Now, your two sons that you mentioned,



              13   do they live here in Womelsdorf?



              14           A   Yes, they do.



              15           Q   And do you ever get rides from your



              16   sons?



              17           A   Yes, I do.



              18           Q   Okay.  And I think you mentioned that



              19   you've gotten a ride from one son to the polling



              20   place; is that right?



              21           A   Yes.



              22           Q   What about the grocery store?  How do



              23   you get groceries?



              24           A   My son shops.



              25           Q   Do you go to the grocery store too?
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               1           A   No.  I couldn't tell you the last time



               2   I went.



               3           Q   Okay.  What about doctors'



               4   appointments?  How do you get to doctors'



               5   appointments?



               6           A   I often have to -- if my son is not



               7   available, then I have to call friends who, like I



               8   said earlier, have to come all the way up from



               9   Reading and take me wherever I need to go.



              10           Q   Are your sons employed?



              11           A   Yes, they are.



              12           Q   And what kind of work do they do or



              13   where do they work?



              14           A   My oldest son works at Reading Alloys,



              15   which is located in Robesonia.  And my youngest



              16   son -- that's a hard one.



              17           Q   Maybe I should ask this way:  What kind



              18   of work does your youngest son do?



              19           A   He works construction.



              20           Q   What kind of hours does your son who



              21   works construction work?



              22           A   He has horrendous hours.  He oftentimes



              23   will leave at 4:30, 5 o'clock in the morning and



              24   doesn't get home until 9 o'clock at night, because



              25   oftentimes -- I know I'm going on and on; but he
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               1   doesn't have one destination.  He may have to go to



               2   Jersey.  He may have to go to Timbuktu to work that



               3   day.



               4           Q   And the son who works at Reading



               5   Alloys, what kind of hours does he work?



               6           A   I believe it's basically from 7:00 to



               7   3:00.



               8           Q   And does that son have any family



               9   members to take care of?



              10           A   Yes, he does.  His wife at this point



              11   is in a very bad place to be.  She had a knee



              12   replaced.  Unfortunately, the knee was faulty, and



              13   it was infected.  And she had five surgeries in



              14   less than four months.



              15               And she -- she's home from the hospital



              16   now, but she is in bed constantly -- well, the bed



              17   is in the living room, but she -- she cannot get up



              18   and walk around.  She must stay in bed.



              19           Q   Now, your friends from Reading, do



              20   they -- the ones who drove you to PennDOT that you



              21   mentioned, do they often give you rides to places?



              22           A   Yes.  They would like to take me a lot



              23   more places, but they don't fully understand my



              24   pain situation.



              25           Q   Okay.  Do any of the people who give
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               1   you rides have a vehicle with a wheelchair lift?



               2           A   No, they do not.



               3           Q   So how do you get in and out of the



               4   car?



               5           A   They put the wheelchair as close to the



               6   door as we can.  We have a little stepstool that I



               7   step on first, and I kind of back into it.  And I



               8   have a cushion that swivels.  You back in and you



               9   sit down and swivel yourself into the seat.



              10           Q   Okay.  And you mentioned that you went



              11   to the PennDOT location in Shillington; is that



              12   right?



              13           A   That's correct.



              14           Q   Is the process you just described how



              15   you got in and out of the car on that trip?



              16           A   Yes.



              17           Q   Now, what happened when you went into



              18   the Shillington PennDOT office?



              19           A   I told them that I was there to get an



              20   ID card so I could vote.  And the lady got a paper



              21   and circled some stuff on this paper and handed me



              22   the paper.  And she said it would be $13.50.



              23               And I said, "I was under the impression



              24   that it was for free."



              25               But I started to get my money out.  And
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               1   she said, "Oh, we don't take cash.  You have to



               2   either have a check or a money order."



               3               Well, I didn't have either one.  And I



               4   asked her, "What's wrong with cash?"  But they



               5   don't accept cash.



               6               So she told me that -- it's actually in



               7   a mall where this PennDOT is.  And she said I could



               8   go up to the other end of the mall and get a money



               9   order up there, which would entail getting in the



              10   vehicle, driving up there, getting out, going in,



              11   coming out, getting back in, and -- it's just too



              12   much.  I can't do all those things at one time.



              13           Q   You mentioned a piece of paper, and I



              14   want to show you a document.  This has been stamped



              15   for production as Vote-2255 through '56.  It's a



              16   double-sided, single-paged document.  And I believe



              17   it's been identified as Trial Exhibit 4130.



              18               Would you look at this document for a



              19   moment.



              20           A   Uh-huh.



              21           Q   Is this the paper form you were



              22   referring to?



              23           A   That's it.



              24           Q   And I noticed there's some circles and



              25   an X written on this page.
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               1           A   Correct.



               2           Q   Who wrote those?



               3           A   The lady down there did.



               4           Q   Okay.  Did you get a new ID card on



               5   that visit?



               6           A   No, I did not.



               7           Q   And have you subsequently gotten any



               8   new ID card?



               9           A   No, I have not.



              10           Q   You mentioned that you were -- I think



              11   you said you were under the impression that you



              12   could get one for free?



              13           A   Correct.



              14           Q   What made you think that you could get



              15   one for free?



              16           A   I heard it on TV.



              17           Q   And have you ever seen any



              18   advertisements about the voter ID law?



              19           A   Yes.



              20           Q   And do you remember when you saw those



              21   advertisements?



              22           A   Well, prior to me going and trying to



              23   get one.



              24           Q   Okay.  Have you seen any since the



              25   November elections?
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               1           A   I don't believe I have.



               2           Q   And have you heard of something called



               3   the Department of State ID card?



               4           A   No.  I have no idea what that is.



               5           Q   Have you ever had your driving



               6   privileges suspended or revoked or disqualified?



               7           A   No.



               8           Q   When was the last time you drove,



               9   roughly?



              10           A   Back in -- probably '94.



              11           Q   What did you think when the clerk told



              12   you that it would cost 13.50 to get a new ID card?



              13           A   Well, at first I thought, Well, I guess



              14   I heard wrong.  But then I said to her, "I thought



              15   they said on TV that it was free."



              16               And she was -- she was not a happy



              17   helper.  She -- it was basically like, take it or



              18   leave it.  This is the way it is.  Do you want it



              19   or don't you?  That's the feeling I got.



              20           Q   Okay.  How long did this whole trip



              21   take, from when you left your house to when you got



              22   back into your house?



              23           A   I would say a little more than two



              24   hours.



              25           Q   Okay.  And how did you feel when you
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               1   got home?



               2           A   I was in great pain.  I have a lot of



               3   difficulty sitting and getting around.  So --



               4           Q   And have you gone back to the



               5   Shillington PennDOT to try again since then?



               6           A   No, I have not.



               7           Q   And why not?



               8           A   I guess I was just very frustrated,



               9   because it was a painful trip and she was not a



              10   pleasant, happy helper.  And I guess probably in



              11   the back of my mind I thought, well, perhaps one



              12   day when -- like when I have a doctor visit



              13   scheduled, maybe we can do two things in the same



              14   day.



              15           Q   Has there ever been an occasion like



              16   that since then?



              17           A   Actually, no.



              18           Q   Do you have access to the Internet?



              19           A   No, I do not.



              20           Q   Have you ever used the Internet?



              21           A   No, I have not.



              22           Q   Do you ever go to a public library?



              23           A   Not any longer.  I used to be able to



              24   get up to the one here in Womelsdorf, but I can't



              25   go that far anymore.
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               1           Q   Okay.  Is voting important to you?



               2           A   Yes, it is.



               3           Q   Could you tell me why.



               4           A   I think it should be important to all



               5   of us.  We all have a stake in what's going on in



               6   our life, and we need to respect the people who



               7   went before us and went through all kinds of grief



               8   to give us that right.  We need to take advantage



               9   of it.



              10               MR. GEFFEN:  Thank you.  I have no more



              11   questions at this time.  I reserve the right to



              12   redirect examination.



              13                    CROSS-EXAMINATION



              14   BY MR. SCHMIDT:



              15           Q   Good afternoon, Ms. Norton.  My name is



              16   Kevin Schmidt.  I just have a few follow-up



              17   questions.



              18               Ma'am, how did you become a witness in



              19   this lawsuit?



              20           A   I'm sorry.  I didn't hear you.



              21           Q   How did you become a witness in this



              22   lawsuit?



              23           A   I don't know.



              24           Q   Did someone call you on the telephone?



              25           A   Yes.  And we discussed the difficulty
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               1   of not being able to get an ID and -- it was a



               2   young lady that I talked with.



               3           Q   Do you remember her name, ma'am?



               4           A   No.  That I don't remember.



               5           Q   Do you remember how she identified



               6   herself?  Where she was from?



               7           A   No, I don't.



               8           Q   Did she tell you she was with any



               9   organization, like the League of Women's Voters,



              10   for example?



              11           A   I don't believe she said that.



              12           Q   What did you tell her during your



              13   conversation?



              14           A   That I was trying to get an ID and I



              15   was having difficulty doing it.  And then she asked



              16   what I meant I was having -- because apparently it



              17   should not be this difficult.



              18               And so I told her what I've just told



              19   you people about what I went through and how I



              20   tried to get one.  And then she asked if I would



              21   talk to this young man.



              22           Q   That's Attorney Geffen sitting to my



              23   left?



              24           A   Correct.



              25           Q   At any time during your conversation,
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               1   did anyone offer to help you get identification to



               2   vote?



               3           A   Well, they didn't actually say, Would



               4   you like me to come and get you and take you



               5   somewhere or something like that.  Nothing like



               6   that happened.



               7               But she did say that he would talk with



               8   me and perhaps we could get some things



               9   straightened out.  I'm trying to remember how she



              10   worded it, you know.  It's difficult.



              11               But anyway...



              12           Q   But no one during that conversation



              13   provided you an offer of assistance to get an



              14   identification to vote?



              15           A   No, not really, no.



              16           Q   How about in your conversation with



              17   Attorney Geffen?  Was there any offer of assistance



              18   to get identification to vote?



              19           A   Well, he discussed what we're doing



              20   now, sitting and talking about it and kind of



              21   airing my problems to see if we can't come up with



              22   an answer, because there's a lot of people in the



              23   same spot I'm in that you just -- you people who



              24   drive, we don't -- when you can drive, you don't



              25   think about it.  You just do it.  You hop in and
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               1   you go.



               2               And you don't understand the problems



               3   it creates when you can't do that.  You hate to be



               4   imposing on people.  People will say to you,



               5   "Anything I can do to help?"  But nothing is handy.



               6   Nothing is local.  We don't have a taxicab.  We



               7   don't have a bus.  I mean, if we had a bus, I



               8   wouldn't be able to take a bus, you know.



               9               It's -- I have to depend on other



              10   people for everything, and I'm a stand-on-your-own



              11   kind of guy.  And it's very -- it's tough for me to



              12   ask people for help, even though I know, if they



              13   can, if they're available, they're more than happy



              14   to do it.  But I hate imposing on people.



              15           Q   So you have opportunities for people to



              16   help you, like your sons and --



              17           A   Yes.



              18           Q   Hopefully when your daughter-in-law



              19   heals up, she'll be able to help you as well;



              20   correct?



              21           A   Yes.



              22           Q   At any time during your conversations



              23   with your involvement in this lawsuit as a witness,



              24   did anybody offer you assistance to help get an ID?



              25           A   Well, I assume that that's what our
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               1   meeting today is, to help me be able to get aimed



               2   in the right direction.  I mean, nobody actually



               3   has come to me and said, Oh, it's simple.  All you



               4   have to do is thus and so.  Nobody has done that,



               5   no.



               6           Q   What's your understanding of why you're



               7   testifying today?



               8           A   Well, hopefully to makes things easier



               9   for everybody that has this type of a problem, to



              10   make it more accessible.  I mean, when you're on TV



              11   telling me I need to have a voter ID, tell me right



              12   then and there where to go and how to get it.  That



              13   would be helpful.



              14               If I knew exactly where -- I mean, we



              15   went to PennDOT, but that was a suggestion from my



              16   friends.  "Why don't we try going there?"  We



              17   weren't even sure that it was possible.



              18           Q   And did any of that information come



              19   out to you in your conversations with Attorney



              20   Geffen or the woman who called you in advance of



              21   Attorney Geffen about where to go, about what to do



              22   to get an ID, about how they could help you?



              23           A   No.



              24           Q   Ms. Norton, what is the furthest you



              25   travel from your home here in Womelsdorf?
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               1           A   To the doctor's, which is at the --



               2   basically at the Reading Hospital.  So that's 15,



               3   20 miles, whatever it is.



               4           Q   And how long does that take you to get



               5   there?



               6           A   Three quarters of an hour to an hour,



               7   depending on the traffic.



               8           Q   Okay.  So is it fair to say you don't



               9   have any problem traveling in a car for an hour?



              10           A   I have problems, because it's very



              11   painful for me to sit.  And pain really rules your



              12   life, you know.  So -- but I get there.



              13           Q   You can do it, is what you're telling



              14   me?



              15               Now, during the course of your day, do



              16   you have to stand up with your walker?



              17           A   Yes.



              18           Q   Or do you predominantly stay in your



              19   wheelchair for the course of the day?



              20           A   Mostly I scoot around in my chair.



              21           Q   What are the ages of your sons?



              22           A   40 and 50.



              23           Q   And you said you had a



              24   step-granddaughter and a granddaughter; is that



              25   correct?
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               1           A   Yes.



               2           Q   Okay.  And what are their ages?



               3           A   Well, my granddaughter is 25.  And I'm



               4   going to guess at the step-granddaughter.  I'm



               5   going to guess that she's probably 35.



               6           Q   Do they live local as well?



               7           A   At this point in time, I have no idea



               8   where my granddaughter lives.  My



               9   step-granddaughter lives in Womelsdorf.



              10           Q   And does she drive?



              11           A   Yes.



              12           Q   And does she ever offer to drive you



              13   around and take you places?



              14           A   No.



              15           Q   How come?



              16           A   She's got three girls, and she works.



              17   And the girls are all -- you know, there is dance



              18   classes.  There's this, that, and the other thing.



              19           Q   Oh, I know.  I know.  I have a son and



              20   a daughter that I cart around myself.



              21           A   So you know you spend half your life in



              22   a vehicle.



              23           Q   So the last time you attempted to go --



              24   excuse me.  Strike that.



              25               The last time you went to PennDOT was
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               1   in late October of 2012; is that correct, ma'am?



               2           A   Yes.



               3           Q   And you went to the Shillington



               4   driver's licensing center?



               5           A   Yes.



               6           Q   Have you made any efforts since that



               7   time to go back and try and get an identification



               8   card to vote?



               9           A   No, I have not.  Would you like to know



              10   the reason?



              11           Q   Let me ask you another question.



              12           A   Okay.



              13           Q   Have you ever called PennDOT to see if



              14   you can get special accommodations for your pain



              15   and because you're in a wheelchair now?



              16           A   No, I haven't.



              17           Q   Have you ever called PennDOT to ask



              18   them if you could send information through the mail



              19   so that you didn't have to travel to a driver's



              20   licensing center and get --



              21           A   No, I haven't done that.  I assume you



              22   have to be there if you're -- you have to get a



              23   picture taken.



              24           Q   Are you willing to do that, ma'am?



              25           A   Well, I was there thinking that's what
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               1   would -- you know, that it was going to -- she was



               2   going to say, "Okay.  I'll take your picture.



               3   Here's your thing and be on your way."  But it



               4   didn't pan out that way.



               5           Q   Are you willing to call them back and



               6   see if they could make accommodations for you --



               7   "they" being PennDOT -- so that you could get an



               8   identification card to vote?



               9           A   Yes.  I imagine that's what I'll have



              10   to do.  But the past -- this past year has been



              11   very difficult for me.  I've had many, many falls.



              12   And I've in turn had setbacks.



              13           Q   When is your next doctor's appointment,



              14   ma'am?



              15           A   I'm sorry?



              16           Q   When is your next doctor's appointment?



              17           A   Well, I was just there in June -- three



              18   months.



              19           Q   So would that be September?



              20           A   Yes.



              21           Q   September?  Okay.



              22               And do you know how you'll get to your



              23   doctor's appointment in September?



              24           A   Probably I'll have to ask my friends



              25   from Reading to come and get me, because
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               1   unfortunately, the boys can't take me because they



               2   work.



               3           Q   And these are the same friends that



               4   took you to the Shillington driver licensing



               5   center?



               6           A   Yes, yes.



               7           Q   Okay.  Do you think that they would be



               8   willing to do so again, ma'am?



               9           A   Yes.



              10           Q   Ma'am, has any doctor prohibited you



              11   from traveling by car?



              12           A   No.



              13           Q   Has any doctor placed any physical



              14   restrictions on you?



              15           A   They tell me to do what I can, what



              16   little I can do.  Try to keep moving.



              17           Q   Is there any -- have they ever advised



              18   you to not sit for a certain amount of time or not



              19   stand for a certain amount of time?



              20           A   Oh, yeah, they always tell me that.



              21   You know, it's -- I spend most of my day laying



              22   either on the sofa or on my bed, because sitting is



              23   extremely painful for me.  I have rods and pins in



              24   my back, and it's not really conducive to sitting.



              25           Q   Ma'am, I want you to take a look at
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               1   that document that Attorney Geffen showed to you



               2   earlier, which has been previously marked as



               3   Vote-2255; and the second page of it has Vote-2256.



               4               Is your name on there, ma'am?



               5           A   No.



               6           Q   Did you ever start to fill it out,



               7   assuming this is the document you got when you went



               8   to PennDOT in Shillington?



               9           A   No, I didn't fill anything out, because



              10   we couldn't conclude our business because I didn't



              11   have a check or a money order.  I only had cash.



              12   So I didn't bother filling the paperwork out.



              13           Q   So is it fair to say that none of the



              14   writing on the document is yours?



              15           A   Correct.



              16           Q   Do you know whose it is?



              17           A   I have no idea.



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  I have nothing further,



              19   ma'am.  Thank you very much.



              20               THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.



              21                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION



              22   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              23           Q   I have just a few questions to follow



              24   up on some of the things Mr. Schmidt discussed.



              25               At one point Mr. Schmidt asked you a
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               1   question:  Why haven't you made another attempt to



               2   go back to PennDOT?  And it sounded like there was



               3   something you wanted to say.  What is it that you



               4   wanted to say?



               5           A   I thought I did say it.  I've had many



               6   falls, and I've been set back in my abilities to



               7   get in and out.



               8           Q   And that all happened since the last



               9   time you went to PennDOT?



              10           A   Yes.



              11           Q   Okay.  And you mentioned a three-month



              12   doctor appointment.  Do you regularly visit the



              13   doctor once every three months?  Is that how I



              14   should take that?



              15           A   Yes.  That's my back doctor.



              16           Q   And are there other doctors you go to



              17   on a regular basis?



              18           A   My family doctor, whatever you want to



              19   call him.



              20           Q   Okay.  How do you feel after you get



              21   home from one of those doctor's appointments?



              22           A   Totally wiped out, exhausted, in pain.



              23   You come in the door; you grab your pills and you



              24   crash and burn.



              25           Q   And how often when you have one of
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               1   those doctor's appointments do you tack on an



               2   additional errand while you're out and about?



               3           A   Very rarely.  It's like, let's get



               4   there and get home as fast as we can.



               5           Q   Okay.  And --



               6           A   I didn't even do -- I know nobody



               7   cares, but I didn't do one bit of Christmas



               8   shopping, not one.  Because I just -- I'm just not



               9   up to it.



              10           Q   I understand.



              11               The last thing I wanted to ask you



              12   about, Mr. Schmidt asked you:  Did you know whose



              13   writing was on this form, this exhibit that we



              14   showed you?



              15               Do you know that -- do you know the



              16   name of any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with



              17   that day?



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the form of



              19   the question; assumes facts not on the record.



              20               MR. GEFFEN:  I asked her whether she



              21   knows any -- I'll ask her this question.



              22   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              23           Q   When you went to PennDOT in November or



              24   October of last year, did you catch the names of



              25   any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with?

�                                                                          36



               1           A   No.  I don't think she bothered



               2   introducing herself.  You knew who she was.  She



               3   said, "Next."  You went up and you told her what



               4   you wanted, and that was the end of our business.



               5           Q   Okay.  And who gave you this form that



               6   we've been looking at?



               7           A   The lady who was -- said "next."



               8           Q   And who wrote these circles and X on



               9   this form?



              10           A   She did.



              11           Q   Okay.  But you don't know her name?



              12           A   No, I have no idea what her name was.



              13           Q   Okay.  I have no more questions.



              14           A   Okay.



              15                   RECROSS-EXAMINATION



              16   BY MR. SCHMIDT:



              17           Q   Ms. Norton, just one question.  Did you



              18   see her make these marks on the form?



              19           A   Yes, I did.



              20               MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  No further



              21   questions.  Thank you very much.



              22               THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.



              23               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  This concludes the



              24   videotaped deposition of Patricia Norton.  Time on



              25   video is 15:07.
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·1· · · · · · · ·(An opening statement was made by the
·2· ·videographer re the caption of the case; the time;
·3· ·the address of the office location; the name of the
·4· ·videographer and the court reporter.· All counsel
·5· ·identified themselves on the record and stated the
·6· ·parties they represent.)
·7· · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION
·8· · · · · · · · · · · · -· ·-· ·-
·9· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
10· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Good afternoon.· Would you
11· ·please state your name for the record.
12· · · · · ·A· ·Patricia Norton.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·And Mrs. Norton, where do you live?
14· · · · · ·A· ·27 South Front Street, Womelsdorf,
15· ·Pennsylvania, Berks County.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·And that's where we are right now?
17· · · · · ·A· ·That's where we are.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·How long have you lived in this home?
19· · · · · ·A· ·48 years.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·And how long have you lived in Berks
21· ·County?
22· · · · · ·A· ·All my life.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you currently married?
24· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I'm a widow.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have any family who live
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·1· ·nearby?
·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· I have two sons.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And I noticed when I came in, there was
·4· ·a photograph of a young man in, I think, a Navy
·5· ·uniform.
·6· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Who is he?
·8· · · · · ·A· ·He's also my son.· I have trouble with
·9· ·this.· I'm sorry.
10· · · · · · · ·He was in the military, and he was in
11· ·Hong Kong and he got hit by a taxi cab.· And they
12· ·drug him 75 feet and put the car in reverse and
13· ·reversed for 75 feet.
14· · · · · · · ·So he had major surgeries.· He came
15· ·home.· But he was never himself again, and he
16· ·passed away.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·I'm sorry to hear that.
18· · · · · · · ·Do you need a moment?
19· · · · · ·A· ·No.· Go on to something else quickly.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have any grandchildren?
21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I do.· I have a step-granddaughter
22· ·and a granddaughter.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have any
24· ·great-grandchildren?
25· · · · · ·A· ·I have a total of five, four girls and
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·1· ·one boy.
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Congratulations.
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Thank you.
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·I notice you're sitting in a wheelchair
·5· ·right now.· How often do you use a wheelchair?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·Most every day.
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you ever use a walker?
·8· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
·9· · · · · ·Q· ·And how far can you travel using a
10· ·walker?
11· · · · · ·A· ·Half a block -- I'll say half a block.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you drive a car?
13· · · · · ·A· ·No.
14· · · · · ·Q· ·I want to ask you a few questions about
15· ·voting.· Are you currently registered to vote?
16· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I am.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·And how often do you vote?
18· · · · · ·A· ·As often as I can get to the poll.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And where is your polling place?
20· · · · · ·A· ·At the corner of North Front in
21· ·Womelsdorf.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·And what's the building called?
23· · · · · ·A· ·The borough hall.· I'm sorry.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·And when I was driving into town, I saw
25· ·a building at the intersection at the corner of
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·1· ·your block that looked like a government building,
·2· ·is that the borough hall?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, it is.
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And does that building have any
·5· ·steps or other barriers that would keep you from
·6· ·getting there in a wheelchair?
·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to form.
·8· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It has a ramp.
·9· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the term
10· ·"barriers."· Can you rephrase it, please.
11· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Sure.
12· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
13· · · · · ·Q· ·How do you get into that building,
14· ·given that you have a wheelchair?
15· · · · · ·A· ·It has a ramp.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And are you able to use the
17· ·voting machine, even though you're in a wheelchair?
18· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I can.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·And how does that work?
20· · · · · ·A· ·They lower it for me.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·And how do you get from your house to
22· ·borough hall to vote?
23· · · · · ·A· ·Usually someone will drive me there.
24· ·Since it's just down at the corner really,
25· ·sometimes my son will just push me in my
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·1· ·wheelchair.
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And what kind of a wait do you
·3· ·encounter at the polling place to vote?
·4· · · · · ·A· ·Most times it goes very smoothly and I
·5· ·don't have much wait at all.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And do you ever vote by absentee
·7· ·ballot?
·8· · · · · ·A· ·No.
·9· · · · · ·Q· ·And if there were going to be an
10· ·election today, would you be able to -- would you
11· ·be physically able to get to borough hall to vote?
12· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·And today if there were going to be an
14· ·election, would you be able to sign a legal
15· ·declaration saying that you were unable to attend
16· ·because of illness or physical disability?
17· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the form of
18· ·the question.· It's leading.· Rephrase it.
19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'll rephrase it.
20· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
21· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you currently have an illness that
22· ·would keep you from getting there today if there
23· ·were an election today?
24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; leading.
25· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· I can rephrase this.
·2· · · · · · · ·If there were an election today, do you
·3· ·think that you would be able to vote in person or
·4· ·not?
·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; leading.
·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Can we go off the record
·7· ·for a moment.
·8· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· Going off the
·9· ·record.· Time on video is 14:33.
10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'm trying to save some
11· ·time here.
12· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· No.· I understand.· But I
13· ·just don't want you to testify for her, so --
14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I don't think I am, but is
15· ·there some other way I could ask this question that
16· ·would satisfy you.
17· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· How do you vote?
18· · · · · · · ·What's your health status currently?
19· · · · · · · ·Let her describe it.· That's all I'm
20· ·asking for.· I don't want you to testify.· I don't
21· ·think you want that, either, on the record.· You
22· ·don't want your testimony here.
23· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Nobody wants that.
24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I appreciate -- I really
25· ·do; I appreciate the fact that you're trying to
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·1· ·expedite things.
·2· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Okay.· We'll do it that
·3· ·way, then.
·4· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· We're now back on
·5· ·the record.· Time on video is 14:34.
·6· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Is there any reason that you would feel
·8· ·differently about voting in person versus voting by
·9· ·absentee ballot?
10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
11· · · · · ·Q· ·And what would that be?
12· · · · · ·A· ·I like to vote in person because I want
13· ·to make sure that I'm being counted.· If I would
14· ·send an absentee ballot in, possibly it could get
15· ·lost in the mail.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·I may have already asked you:· How long
17· ·have you been voting at borough hall?
18· · · · · ·A· ·Ever since I lived in Womelsdorf,
19· ·48 years.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you see familiar people when you
21· ·go to vote?
22· · · · · ·A· ·Indeed I do.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, did you vote in the November 2012
24· ·election?
25· · · · · ·A· ·I did.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·And when you went that time, did anyone
·2· ·say anything to you about photo ID?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·We --
·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; hearsay.
·5· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I'm not asking her for the
·6· ·truth of the matter asserted.· I'm just asking her
·7· ·whether anybody said anything to her.
·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Okay.
·9· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
10· · · · · ·Q· ·So you may answer the question.
11· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·I'll repeat it.
13· · · · · · · ·When you went to vote in November of
14· ·last year, did anyone say anything to you about
15· ·photo ID?
16· · · · · ·A· ·I asked them.· They didn't bring it up.
17· ·I asked them.· And at that point they didn't know
18· ·what I would have to do.· They just said I was okay
19· ·then, because I didn't have to have one in
20· ·November.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·And when you say you asked "them," whom
22· ·are you referring to?
23· · · · · ·A· ·What do you --
24· · · · · ·Q· ·The people --
25· · · · · ·A· ·What do you call them?
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you talking about people who were
·2· ·at the borough hall?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·The people who are -- are asking me to
·4· ·sign in.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· The poll workers?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.· There's a good word.· Use that
·7· ·one.· I couldn't think of one.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And what did they say to you about --
·9· ·did they say anything to you about what kind of ID
10· ·you could vote with?
11· · · · · ·A· ·What kind of what?
12· · · · · ·Q· ·Of ID you could vote with.
13· · · · · ·A· ·They asked if I had a --
14· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection; hearsay.
15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Again, I'm not asking her
16· ·for the truth of the matter.· I'm asking her what
17· ·somebody said to her for its effect on her.
18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· You asked her what they
19· ·said to her.
20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Right.· I'm not -- I'm not
21· ·going to offer her testimony about what somebody
22· ·said to her as for the truth of what that person
23· ·said.
24· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I understand that.  I
25· ·think you need to rephrase it.
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·1· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Did you learn anything when you went
·3· ·there that day about what types of photo ID you
·4· ·could use to vote with?
·5· · · · · ·A· ·Well, they did say if I had a passport,
·6· ·I could use that; but I didn't really feel I needed
·7· ·one to go to the corner.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Anything else they told you about, what
·9· ·kind of photo ID?
10· · · · · ·A· ·They asked about a driver's license.
11· ·But every -- see, everybody knows everybody, and
12· ·they all know my situation, you know.· So they
13· ·already know that I can't drive.· I'm not allowed
14· ·to drive because of my physical disabilities.
15· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Well, let me ask you a few more
16· ·questions about your ID situation.
17· · · · · · · ·Have you ever had a Pennsylvania
18· ·driver's license?
19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have one, an active driver's
21· ·license right now?
22· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·When was the last time you had an
24· ·active driver's license?
25· · · · · ·A· ·Back in '95.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.
·2· · · · · ·A· ·1995.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you have a U.S. passport?
·4· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have any other ID with your
·6· ·picture on it?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you ever tried to get a new ID
·9· ·from PennDOT?
10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I have.
11· · · · · ·Q· ·When did you do that?
12· · · · · ·A· ·Before the election in November of
13· ·2012.
14· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember how far before the
15· ·election?· Was it a long time before the election
16· ·or --
17· · · · · ·A· ·No.· It was maybe the end of October,
18· ·beginning of November.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And where did you go to do that?
20· · · · · ·A· ·I had to go to Shillington,
21· ·Pennsylvania.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·Is that the nearest PennDOT location?
23· · · · · ·A· ·I guess basically you could go to
24· ·Lebanon.· I'm thinking it's probably six of one and
25· ·half dozen of another.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you know about how far away the
·2· ·Shillington PennDOT location is?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, it takes us about 45 minutes or
·4· ·more to get there, depending, of course, on
·5· ·traffic.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·How did you get there?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·I had friends from Reading come up and
·8· ·pick me up and take me there.· We made a special
·9· ·trip to try to get ID.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·And how far away is Reading from here?
11· · · · · ·A· ·15, 20 miles.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, your two sons that you mentioned,
13· ·do they live here in Womelsdorf?
14· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, they do.
15· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you ever get rides from your
16· ·sons?
17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I do.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And I think you mentioned that
19· ·you've gotten a ride from one son to the polling
20· ·place; is that right?
21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·What about the grocery store?· How do
23· ·you get groceries?
24· · · · · ·A· ·My son shops.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you go to the grocery store too?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I couldn't tell you the last time
·2· ·I went.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· What about doctors'
·4· ·appointments?· How do you get to doctors'
·5· ·appointments?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·I often have to -- if my son is not
·7· ·available, then I have to call friends who, like I
·8· ·said earlier, have to come all the way up from
·9· ·Reading and take me wherever I need to go.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·Are your sons employed?
11· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, they are.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·And what kind of work do they do or
13· ·where do they work?
14· · · · · ·A· ·My oldest son works at Reading Alloys,
15· ·which is located in Robesonia.· And my youngest
16· ·son -- that's a hard one.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·Maybe I should ask this way:· What kind
18· ·of work does your youngest son do?
19· · · · · ·A· ·He works construction.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·What kind of hours does your son who
21· ·works construction work?
22· · · · · ·A· ·He has horrendous hours.· He oftentimes
23· ·will leave at 4:30, 5 o'clock in the morning and
24· ·doesn't get home until 9 o'clock at night, because
25· ·oftentimes -- I know I'm going on and on; but he
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·1· ·doesn't have one destination.· He may have to go to
·2· ·Jersey.· He may have to go to Timbuktu to work that
·3· ·day.
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And the son who works at Reading
·5· ·Alloys, what kind of hours does he work?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·I believe it's basically from 7:00 to
·7· ·3:00.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And does that son have any family
·9· ·members to take care of?
10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, he does.· His wife at this point
11· ·is in a very bad place to be.· She had a knee
12· ·replaced.· Unfortunately, the knee was faulty, and
13· ·it was infected.· And she had five surgeries in
14· ·less than four months.
15· · · · · · · ·And she -- she's home from the hospital
16· ·now, but she is in bed constantly -- well, the bed
17· ·is in the living room, but she -- she cannot get up
18· ·and walk around.· She must stay in bed.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, your friends from Reading, do
20· ·they -- the ones who drove you to PennDOT that you
21· ·mentioned, do they often give you rides to places?
22· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· They would like to take me a lot
23· ·more places, but they don't fully understand my
24· ·pain situation.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Do any of the people who give
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·1· ·you rides have a vehicle with a wheelchair lift?
·2· · · · · ·A· ·No, they do not.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·So how do you get in and out of the
·4· ·car?
·5· · · · · ·A· ·They put the wheelchair as close to the
·6· ·door as we can.· We have a little stepstool that I
·7· ·step on first, and I kind of back into it.· And I
·8· ·have a cushion that swivels.· You back in and you
·9· ·sit down and swivel yourself into the seat.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And you mentioned that you went
11· ·to the PennDOT location in Shillington; is that
12· ·right?
13· · · · · ·A· ·That's correct.
14· · · · · ·Q· ·Is the process you just described how
15· ·you got in and out of the car on that trip?
16· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·Now, what happened when you went into
18· ·the Shillington PennDOT office?
19· · · · · ·A· ·I told them that I was there to get an
20· ·ID card so I could vote.· And the lady got a paper
21· ·and circled some stuff on this paper and handed me
22· ·the paper.· And she said it would be $13.50.
23· · · · · · · ·And I said, "I was under the impression
24· ·that it was for free."
25· · · · · · · ·But I started to get my money out.· And
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·1· ·she said, "Oh, we don't take cash.· You have to
·2· ·either have a check or a money order."
·3· · · · · · · ·Well, I didn't have either one.· And I
·4· ·asked her, "What's wrong with cash?"· But they
·5· ·don't accept cash.
·6· · · · · · · ·So she told me that -- it's actually in
·7· ·a mall where this PennDOT is.· And she said I could
·8· ·go up to the other end of the mall and get a money
·9· ·order up there, which would entail getting in the
10· ·vehicle, driving up there, getting out, going in,
11· ·coming out, getting back in, and -- it's just too
12· ·much.· I can't do all those things at one time.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·You mentioned a piece of paper, and I
14· ·want to show you a document.· This has been stamped
15· ·for production as Vote-2255 through '56.· It's a
16· ·double-sided, single-paged document.· And I believe
17· ·it's been identified as Trial Exhibit 4130.
18· · · · · · · ·Would you look at this document for a
19· ·moment.
20· · · · · ·A· ·Uh-huh.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·Is this the paper form you were
22· ·referring to?
23· · · · · ·A· ·That's it.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·And I noticed there's some circles and
25· ·an X written on this page.
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Who wrote those?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·The lady down there did.
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Did you get a new ID card on
·5· ·that visit?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·No, I did not.
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you subsequently gotten any
·8· ·new ID card?
·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·You mentioned that you were -- I think
11· ·you said you were under the impression that you
12· ·could get one for free?
13· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.
14· · · · · ·Q· ·What made you think that you could get
15· ·one for free?
16· · · · · ·A· ·I heard it on TV.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you ever seen any
18· ·advertisements about the voter ID law?
19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·And do you remember when you saw those
21· ·advertisements?
22· · · · · ·A· ·Well, prior to me going and trying to
23· ·get one.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Have you seen any since the
25· ·November elections?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·I don't believe I have.
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you heard of something called
·3· ·the Department of State ID card?
·4· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I have no idea what that is.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever had your driving
·6· ·privileges suspended or revoked or disqualified?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·No.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·When was the last time you drove,
·9· ·roughly?
10· · · · · ·A· ·Back in -- probably '94.
11· · · · · ·Q· ·What did you think when the clerk told
12· ·you that it would cost 13.50 to get a new ID card?
13· · · · · ·A· ·Well, at first I thought, Well, I guess
14· ·I heard wrong.· But then I said to her, "I thought
15· ·they said on TV that it was free."
16· · · · · · · ·And she was -- she was not a happy
17· ·helper.· She -- it was basically like, take it or
18· ·leave it.· This is the way it is.· Do you want it
19· ·or don't you?· That's the feeling I got.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· How long did this whole trip
21· ·take, from when you left your house to when you got
22· ·back into your house?
23· · · · · ·A· ·I would say a little more than two
24· ·hours.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And how did you feel when you
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·1· ·got home?
·2· · · · · ·A· ·I was in great pain.· I have a lot of
·3· ·difficulty sitting and getting around.· So --
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And have you gone back to the
·5· ·Shillington PennDOT to try again since then?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·And why not?
·8· · · · · ·A· ·I guess I was just very frustrated,
·9· ·because it was a painful trip and she was not a
10· ·pleasant, happy helper.· And I guess probably in
11· ·the back of my mind I thought, well, perhaps one
12· ·day when -- like when I have a doctor visit
13· ·scheduled, maybe we can do two things in the same
14· ·day.
15· · · · · ·Q· ·Has there ever been an occasion like
16· ·that since then?
17· · · · · ·A· ·Actually, no.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you have access to the Internet?
19· · · · · ·A· ·No, I do not.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever used the Internet?
21· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you ever go to a public library?
23· · · · · ·A· ·Not any longer.· I used to be able to
24· ·get up to the one here in Womelsdorf, but I can't
25· ·go that far anymore.
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·1· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Is voting important to you?
·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, it is.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Could you tell me why.
·4· · · · · ·A· ·I think it should be important to all
·5· ·of us.· We all have a stake in what's going on in
·6· ·our life, and we need to respect the people who
·7· ·went before us and went through all kinds of grief
·8· ·to give us that right.· We need to take advantage
·9· ·of it.
10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· Thank you.· I have no more
11· ·questions at this time.· I reserve the right to
12· ·redirect examination.
13· · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION
14· ·BY MR. SCHMIDT:
15· · · · · ·Q· ·Good afternoon, Ms. Norton.· My name is
16· ·Kevin Schmidt.· I just have a few follow-up
17· ·questions.
18· · · · · · · ·Ma'am, how did you become a witness in
19· ·this lawsuit?
20· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry.· I didn't hear you.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·How did you become a witness in this
22· ·lawsuit?
23· · · · · ·A· ·I don't know.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·Did someone call you on the telephone?
25· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· And we discussed the difficulty
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·1· ·of not being able to get an ID and -- it was a
·2· ·young lady that I talked with.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember her name, ma'am?
·4· · · · · ·A· ·No.· That I don't remember.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you remember how she identified
·6· ·herself?· Where she was from?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·No, I don't.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Did she tell you she was with any
·9· ·organization, like the League of Women's Voters,
10· ·for example?
11· · · · · ·A· ·I don't believe she said that.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·What did you tell her during your
13· ·conversation?
14· · · · · ·A· ·That I was trying to get an ID and I
15· ·was having difficulty doing it.· And then she asked
16· ·what I meant I was having -- because apparently it
17· ·should not be this difficult.
18· · · · · · · ·And so I told her what I've just told
19· ·you people about what I went through and how I
20· ·tried to get one.· And then she asked if I would
21· ·talk to this young man.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·That's Attorney Geffen sitting to my
23· ·left?
24· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·At any time during your conversation,
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·1· ·did anyone offer to help you get identification to
·2· ·vote?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, they didn't actually say, Would
·4· ·you like me to come and get you and take you
·5· ·somewhere or something like that.· Nothing like
·6· ·that happened.
·7· · · · · · · ·But she did say that he would talk with
·8· ·me and perhaps we could get some things
·9· ·straightened out.· I'm trying to remember how she
10· ·worded it, you know.· It's difficult.
11· · · · · · · ·But anyway...
12· · · · · ·Q· ·But no one during that conversation
13· ·provided you an offer of assistance to get an
14· ·identification to vote?
15· · · · · ·A· ·No, not really, no.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·How about in your conversation with
17· ·Attorney Geffen?· Was there any offer of assistance
18· ·to get identification to vote?
19· · · · · ·A· ·Well, he discussed what we're doing
20· ·now, sitting and talking about it and kind of
21· ·airing my problems to see if we can't come up with
22· ·an answer, because there's a lot of people in the
23· ·same spot I'm in that you just -- you people who
24· ·drive, we don't -- when you can drive, you don't
25· ·think about it.· You just do it.· You hop in and
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·1· ·you go.
·2· · · · · · · ·And you don't understand the problems
·3· ·it creates when you can't do that.· You hate to be
·4· ·imposing on people.· People will say to you,
·5· ·"Anything I can do to help?"· But nothing is handy.
·6· ·Nothing is local.· We don't have a taxicab.· We
·7· ·don't have a bus.· I mean, if we had a bus, I
·8· ·wouldn't be able to take a bus, you know.
·9· · · · · · · ·It's -- I have to depend on other
10· ·people for everything, and I'm a stand-on-your-own
11· ·kind of guy.· And it's very -- it's tough for me to
12· ·ask people for help, even though I know, if they
13· ·can, if they're available, they're more than happy
14· ·to do it.· But I hate imposing on people.
15· · · · · ·Q· ·So you have opportunities for people to
16· ·help you, like your sons and --
17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·Hopefully when your daughter-in-law
19· ·heals up, she'll be able to help you as well;
20· ·correct?
21· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
22· · · · · ·Q· ·At any time during your conversations
23· ·with your involvement in this lawsuit as a witness,
24· ·did anybody offer you assistance to help get an ID?
25· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I assume that that's what our
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·1· ·meeting today is, to help me be able to get aimed
·2· ·in the right direction.· I mean, nobody actually
·3· ·has come to me and said, Oh, it's simple.· All you
·4· ·have to do is thus and so.· Nobody has done that,
·5· ·no.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·What's your understanding of why you're
·7· ·testifying today?
·8· · · · · ·A· ·Well, hopefully to makes things easier
·9· ·for everybody that has this type of a problem, to
10· ·make it more accessible.· I mean, when you're on TV
11· ·telling me I need to have a voter ID, tell me right
12· ·then and there where to go and how to get it.· That
13· ·would be helpful.
14· · · · · · · ·If I knew exactly where -- I mean, we
15· ·went to PennDOT, but that was a suggestion from my
16· ·friends.· "Why don't we try going there?"· We
17· ·weren't even sure that it was possible.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·And did any of that information come
19· ·out to you in your conversations with Attorney
20· ·Geffen or the woman who called you in advance of
21· ·Attorney Geffen about where to go, about what to do
22· ·to get an ID, about how they could help you?
23· · · · · ·A· ·No.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·Ms. Norton, what is the furthest you
25· ·travel from your home here in Womelsdorf?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·To the doctor's, which is at the --
·2· ·basically at the Reading Hospital.· So that's 15,
·3· ·20 miles, whatever it is.
·4· · · · · ·Q· ·And how long does that take you to get
·5· ·there?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·Three quarters of an hour to an hour,
·7· ·depending on the traffic.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· So is it fair to say you don't
·9· ·have any problem traveling in a car for an hour?
10· · · · · ·A· ·I have problems, because it's very
11· ·painful for me to sit.· And pain really rules your
12· ·life, you know.· So -- but I get there.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·You can do it, is what you're telling
14· ·me?
15· · · · · · · ·Now, during the course of your day, do
16· ·you have to stand up with your walker?
17· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
18· · · · · ·Q· ·Or do you predominantly stay in your
19· ·wheelchair for the course of the day?
20· · · · · ·A· ·Mostly I scoot around in my chair.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·What are the ages of your sons?
22· · · · · ·A· ·40 and 50.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·And you said you had a
24· ·step-granddaughter and a granddaughter; is that
25· ·correct?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
·2· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And what are their ages?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Well, my granddaughter is 25.· And I'm
·4· ·going to guess at the step-granddaughter.· I'm
·5· ·going to guess that she's probably 35.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Do they live local as well?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·At this point in time, I have no idea
·8· ·where my granddaughter lives.· My
·9· ·step-granddaughter lives in Womelsdorf.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·And does she drive?
11· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
12· · · · · ·Q· ·And does she ever offer to drive you
13· ·around and take you places?
14· · · · · ·A· ·No.
15· · · · · ·Q· ·How come?
16· · · · · ·A· ·She's got three girls, and she works.
17· ·And the girls are all -- you know, there is dance
18· ·classes.· There's this, that, and the other thing.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·Oh, I know.· I know.· I have a son and
20· ·a daughter that I cart around myself.
21· · · · · ·A· ·So you know you spend half your life in
22· ·a vehicle.
23· · · · · ·Q· ·So the last time you attempted to go --
24· ·excuse me.· Strike that.
25· · · · · · · ·The last time you went to PennDOT was
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·1· ·in late October of 2012; is that correct, ma'am?
·2· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And you went to the Shillington
·4· ·driver's licensing center?
·5· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you made any efforts since that
·7· ·time to go back and try and get an identification
·8· ·card to vote?
·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have not.· Would you like to know
10· ·the reason?
11· · · · · ·Q· ·Let me ask you another question.
12· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever called PennDOT to see if
14· ·you can get special accommodations for your pain
15· ·and because you're in a wheelchair now?
16· · · · · ·A· ·No, I haven't.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·Have you ever called PennDOT to ask
18· ·them if you could send information through the mail
19· ·so that you didn't have to travel to a driver's
20· ·licensing center and get --
21· · · · · ·A· ·No, I haven't done that.· I assume you
22· ·have to be there if you're -- you have to get a
23· ·picture taken.
24· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you willing to do that, ma'am?
25· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I was there thinking that's what
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·1· ·would -- you know, that it was going to -- she was
·2· ·going to say, "Okay.· I'll take your picture.
·3· ·Here's your thing and be on your way."· But it
·4· ·didn't pan out that way.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Are you willing to call them back and
·6· ·see if they could make accommodations for you --
·7· ·"they" being PennDOT -- so that you could get an
·8· ·identification card to vote?
·9· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· I imagine that's what I'll have
10· ·to do.· But the past -- this past year has been
11· ·very difficult for me.· I've had many, many falls.
12· ·And I've in turn had setbacks.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·When is your next doctor's appointment,
14· ·ma'am?
15· · · · · ·A· ·I'm sorry?
16· · · · · ·Q· ·When is your next doctor's appointment?
17· · · · · ·A· ·Well, I was just there in June -- three
18· ·months.
19· · · · · ·Q· ·So would that be September?
20· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
21· · · · · ·Q· ·September?· Okay.
22· · · · · · · ·And do you know how you'll get to your
23· ·doctor's appointment in September?
24· · · · · ·A· ·Probably I'll have to ask my friends
25· ·from Reading to come and get me, because
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·1· ·unfortunately, the boys can't take me because they
·2· ·work.
·3· · · · · ·Q· ·And these are the same friends that
·4· ·took you to the Shillington driver licensing
·5· ·center?
·6· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, yes.
·7· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· Do you think that they would be
·8· ·willing to do so again, ma'am?
·9· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·Ma'am, has any doctor prohibited you
11· ·from traveling by car?
12· · · · · ·A· ·No.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·Has any doctor placed any physical
14· ·restrictions on you?
15· · · · · ·A· ·They tell me to do what I can, what
16· ·little I can do.· Try to keep moving.
17· · · · · ·Q· ·Is there any -- have they ever advised
18· ·you to not sit for a certain amount of time or not
19· ·stand for a certain amount of time?
20· · · · · ·A· ·Oh, yeah, they always tell me that.
21· ·You know, it's -- I spend most of my day laying
22· ·either on the sofa or on my bed, because sitting is
23· ·extremely painful for me.· I have rods and pins in
24· ·my back, and it's not really conducive to sitting.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·Ma'am, I want you to take a look at
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·1· ·that document that Attorney Geffen showed to you
·2· ·earlier, which has been previously marked as
·3· ·Vote-2255; and the second page of it has Vote-2256.
·4· · · · · · · ·Is your name on there, ma'am?
·5· · · · · ·A· ·No.
·6· · · · · ·Q· ·Did you ever start to fill it out,
·7· ·assuming this is the document you got when you went
·8· ·to PennDOT in Shillington?
·9· · · · · ·A· ·No, I didn't fill anything out, because
10· ·we couldn't conclude our business because I didn't
11· ·have a check or a money order.· I only had cash.
12· ·So I didn't bother filling the paperwork out.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·So is it fair to say that none of the
14· ·writing on the document is yours?
15· · · · · ·A· ·Correct.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·Do you know whose it is?
17· · · · · ·A· ·I have no idea.
18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· I have nothing further,
19· ·ma'am.· Thank you very much.
20· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You're welcome.
21· · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION
22· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
23· · · · · ·Q· ·I have just a few questions to follow
24· ·up on some of the things Mr. Schmidt discussed.
25· · · · · · · ·At one point Mr. Schmidt asked you a
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·1· ·question:· Why haven't you made another attempt to
·2· ·go back to PennDOT?· And it sounded like there was
·3· ·something you wanted to say.· What is it that you
·4· ·wanted to say?
·5· · · · · ·A· ·I thought I did say it.· I've had many
·6· ·falls, and I've been set back in my abilities to
·7· ·get in and out.
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And that all happened since the last
·9· ·time you went to PennDOT?
10· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.
11· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And you mentioned a three-month
12· ·doctor appointment.· Do you regularly visit the
13· ·doctor once every three months?· Is that how I
14· ·should take that?
15· · · · · ·A· ·Yes.· That's my back doctor.
16· · · · · ·Q· ·And are there other doctors you go to
17· ·on a regular basis?
18· · · · · ·A· ·My family doctor, whatever you want to
19· ·call him.
20· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· How do you feel after you get
21· ·home from one of those doctor's appointments?
22· · · · · ·A· ·Totally wiped out, exhausted, in pain.
23· ·You come in the door; you grab your pills and you
24· ·crash and burn.
25· · · · · ·Q· ·And how often when you have one of
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·1· ·those doctor's appointments do you tack on an
·2· ·additional errand while you're out and about?
·3· · · · · ·A· ·Very rarely.· It's like, let's get
·4· ·there and get home as fast as we can.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And --
·6· · · · · ·A· ·I didn't even do -- I know nobody
·7· ·cares, but I didn't do one bit of Christmas
·8· ·shopping, not one.· Because I just -- I'm just not
·9· ·up to it.
10· · · · · ·Q· ·I understand.
11· · · · · · · ·The last thing I wanted to ask you
12· ·about, Mr. Schmidt asked you:· Did you know whose
13· ·writing was on this form, this exhibit that we
14· ·showed you?
15· · · · · · · ·Do you know that -- do you know the
16· ·name of any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with
17· ·that day?
18· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Objection to the form of
19· ·the question; assumes facts not on the record.
20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEFFEN:· I asked her whether she
21· ·knows any -- I'll ask her this question.
22· ·BY MR. GEFFEN:
23· · · · · ·Q· ·When you went to PennDOT in November or
24· ·October of last year, did you catch the names of
25· ·any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with?
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·1· · · · · ·A· ·No.· I don't think she bothered
·2· ·introducing herself.· You knew who she was.· She
·3· ·said, "Next."· You went up and you told her what
·4· ·you wanted, and that was the end of our business.
·5· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· And who gave you this form that
·6· ·we've been looking at?
·7· · · · · ·A· ·The lady who was -- said "next."
·8· · · · · ·Q· ·And who wrote these circles and X on
·9· ·this form?
10· · · · · ·A· ·She did.
11· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· But you don't know her name?
12· · · · · ·A· ·No, I have no idea what her name was.
13· · · · · ·Q· ·Okay.· I have no more questions.
14· · · · · ·A· ·Okay.
15· · · · · · · · · ·RECROSS-EXAMINATION
16· ·BY MR. SCHMIDT:
17· · · · · ·Q· ·Ms. Norton, just one question.· Did you
18· ·see her make these marks on the form?
19· · · · · ·A· ·Yes, I did.
20· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHMIDT:· Okay.· No further
21· ·questions.· Thank you very much.
22· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You're welcome.
23· · · · · · · ·THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· This concludes the
24· ·videotaped deposition of Patricia Norton.· Time on
25· ·video is 15:07.
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·1· ·(Videotaped deposition concluded


·2· ·at 15:07 p.m.)
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1. I HAVE NEVER HELD A PENNSYLVANIA DRIVER'S LICENSE OR IDENTIFICATION CARD AND I AM APPLYING FOR AN 
INITIAL PHOTO IDENIlFlCATlON CARD. (You must apply In person at any Drlver Llcensa Center.) 1 $13.50 1 



I I 



2. I CURRENTLY HOLD A PENNSYLVANIA DRIVER'S LICENSE AND AM APPLYING FOR A NON-DRIVER PHOTO I IDENTIFICATION CARD FOR THE FOLLOWING REISON: I I 
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I already suwundered your Drlver's Ueeneel Lamer's Pennit, pleese ettoeh It to this appliontlon.) I 
I 1 I am voluntanhl surrendering my drivina privileae with the undwslandina that it will be retained for a minimum of wx I I 



RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS (PLEASE CHECK TWO VERIFICATION OF BIFtTH DATE 
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@ 
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months as required by 67 pi. code 933. It is inderstwd that I will notbe permitted to apply for my driver's llceke. 
CI-4 through M inciusive. for a period of 91.. months. w t t a   river's License/ ~eamer's ~ermit.) A VOLUNTARY 
SURRENDER WILL NOT BE ACCEFTED AS CREDIT TOWARD A WSF'ENSION. RECALL, CANCUTION. OR REV0CAM)N. 
As a result of my parent's or guardian's withdrawal of consent for mo to drive a motor vehicle (Attach Driver's U c e n d  
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- How? 
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DL-54A (12-10) The most current version of this form can be found at: www.dmv.state.pa.us 



APPLICANT INFORMATION 
You must be at least 10 years of age or older to obtain a Pennsylvania Photo Identification Card. 



If you are under 18 years of age your parent. guardian, person in loco parentis, or spouse who is 18 years of age or older must 
accompany you. Proper ldentification is required and if the last names are different, verification of relationship is needed. 



Out-of-State Address Change: We may not issue driver license products to an out-of-state address, except in the case of an 
employee of the federal or state government, armed forces personnel, and immediate members of their families, whose workplace 
is located outside of Pennsylvania. If this exception applies to you, please check the appropriate box and include documentation of 
your status with this application. Attach a letter from your employer on their letterhead to document your status, or attach a copy of 
your current Photo ID issued by your employer. If you are the immediate family of a person meeting on of the allowable exceptions, 
attach the documentation of the person employed. Additionally, you must indicate your relationship to that person. 



I certify that my workplace is located out-of-state and I am employed by, or am the immediate family of a person employed by: 
US Armed Forces Federal Government Pennsylvania State Government 



Relationship to person meeting exemption (check one): Spouse Dependent Child 



SECTIONS A, B & C MUST BE COMPLETED IN THEIR ENTIRm. P W S E  TYPE OR PRINT IN BLUE OR BLACK INK ALL INFORMATION. 
If you checked Block 1 in Section B, you must apply in person at a Driver Ucense Center with the identity and residency documents 
listed below. If you are under 18 years of age, your parent, guardian. person in loco parentis, or spouse who is 18 years of age or older 
must accompany you. Pmper identification Is required and if the last names are different, verification of relationship is needed. PLEASE 
NOTE: Driver License Centers do not accept cash or credit cards. You must pay by check or money order. 



If you checked Block 2 or Block 3 in Section B, you can mail your completed and signed application, along wlth your check or money 
order payable to 'PennDOT', to the: Bureau of Driver Licensing, RO. Box 68272, Harrisburg, PA 17106-8272. 



I TO MEET IDENTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS You MUST Present the Followlng: 



U.S. CITIZENS 
Social Security Card (card cannot be laminated) AND QNE of the following: 



Birth Certificate with raised seal (U.S. issued by an authorized oveinment agency, lncludlng U.S. territories or 
Puerto Rico. Non-U.S. Birth Certificates will not be accepted$ 



* Certificate of U.S. Citizenshlp (USCIS Form N-560) 
Certificate of Naturalization (USCIS Fonn N-550 or N-570) 
Valid U.S. Passport 



+ If you have an Out-of-State Driver's Llcense, i t  must be presented wlth one of the above forms of identification. 
NOTE: ONLY VALID PASSPORTS AND ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED. If  the name on your original 
document differs from your current name, you must provide an original Marriage Certificate, Divorce Decree, or Court 
Order document. 



NON-U.S. CITIZENS 
Bring All of the iollowlng: 



Social Security Card, or letter from SSA indicating that SSA did not make a decision yet, or SSA rejection letter 
Valid Passport 
All original (USCIS) documents 
Written verification of attendance from school (Student Status Only) 
Written verification from employer (Employment Status Only) 



To obtain detailed information regarding "identity/residency requirements', you can: 
Vislt www.dmv.state.Da.us 
Call us at 1-800-932-4600 or 1-800-228-0676 (TDD). Mondav thmuclh Fridav from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 am. 



TO MEET RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS You MUST Present TWO of the Following [for customers 18 years of aae or older): 



Lease Agreements Mortgage Documents Current Weapons Permit 
(for U. S. Citizens Only) 



Current Utility Bills (water, gas, electric, cable, etc.) W-2 Form 
*Cellular/mobile or pager bills are not acceptable Tax Records 



Note: If you reside with someone, and have no bills in your name, you will still need to provide two proofs of residency. One proof 
is to bring ttie person with whom you reside along with their Driver's Ucense or Photo ID to the Driver License Center. You will also 
need to provide a second proof of resldency such as official mal (bank statement, tax notice, magazine, etc.) that has your name 
and address on it. The address must match that of the penon with whom you reside. 



Organ Donor Awareness Wust Fund (ODTF): You have the opportunity to contribute $1.00 to the fund. The additional $1.00 
contribution must be added to the $13.50 fee and included in your payment by check or money order. 



The department is required to obtain the Licensee's Social Security number, height and eye color under the provisions of Sections 
1510(a) andlor 1609(a)(4) of the Pennsylvania Vehicle Code. This information will be used as identifying information in an attempt to 
minimize driver license fraud. Federal law permits the use of the Social Security number by state licensing officials for purposes of 
identification. 
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               6             By Mr. Geffen (Redirect)                33
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              22
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              24
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�                                                                           4



               1               (An opening statement was made by the



               2   videographer re the caption of the case; the time;



               3   the address of the office location; the name of the



               4   videographer and the court reporter.  All counsel



               5   identified themselves on the record and stated the



               6   parties they represent.)



               7                    DIRECT EXAMINATION



               8                        -   -   -



               9   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              10           Q   Okay.  Good afternoon.  Would you



              11   please state your name for the record.



              12           A   Patricia Norton.



              13           Q   And Mrs. Norton, where do you live?



              14           A   27 South Front Street, Womelsdorf,



              15   Pennsylvania, Berks County.



              16           Q   And that's where we are right now?



              17           A   That's where we are.



              18           Q   How long have you lived in this home?



              19           A   48 years.



              20           Q   And how long have you lived in Berks



              21   County?



              22           A   All my life.



              23           Q   Are you currently married?



              24           A   No.  I'm a widow.



              25           Q   And do you have any family who live
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               1   nearby?



               2           A   Yes.  I have two sons.



               3           Q   And I noticed when I came in, there was



               4   a photograph of a young man in, I think, a Navy



               5   uniform.



               6           A   Yes.



               7           Q   Who is he?



               8           A   He's also my son.  I have trouble with



               9   this.  I'm sorry.



              10               He was in the military, and he was in



              11   Hong Kong and he got hit by a taxi cab.  And they



              12   drug him 75 feet and put the car in reverse and



              13   reversed for 75 feet.



              14               So he had major surgeries.  He came



              15   home.  But he was never himself again, and he



              16   passed away.



              17           Q   I'm sorry to hear that.



              18               Do you need a moment?



              19           A   No.  Go on to something else quickly.



              20           Q   Do you have any grandchildren?



              21           A   Yes, I do.  I have a step-granddaughter



              22   and a granddaughter.



              23           Q   And do you have any



              24   great-grandchildren?



              25           A   I have a total of five, four girls and
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               1   one boy.



               2           Q   Congratulations.



               3           A   Thank you.



               4           Q   I notice you're sitting in a wheelchair



               5   right now.  How often do you use a wheelchair?



               6           A   Most every day.



               7           Q   Do you ever use a walker?



               8           A   Yes.



               9           Q   And how far can you travel using a



              10   walker?



              11           A   Half a block -- I'll say half a block.



              12           Q   And do you drive a car?



              13           A   No.



              14           Q   I want to ask you a few questions about



              15   voting.  Are you currently registered to vote?



              16           A   Yes, I am.



              17           Q   And how often do you vote?



              18           A   As often as I can get to the poll.



              19           Q   Okay.  And where is your polling place?



              20           A   At the corner of North Front in



              21   Womelsdorf.



              22           Q   And what's the building called?



              23           A   The borough hall.  I'm sorry.



              24           Q   And when I was driving into town, I saw



              25   a building at the intersection at the corner of
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               1   your block that looked like a government building,



               2   is that the borough hall?



               3           A   Yes, it is.



               4           Q   Okay.  And does that building have any



               5   steps or other barriers that would keep you from



               6   getting there in a wheelchair?



               7               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to form.



               8               THE WITNESS:  It has a ramp.



               9               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the term



              10   "barriers."  Can you rephrase it, please.



              11               MR. GEFFEN:  Sure.



              12   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              13           Q   How do you get into that building,



              14   given that you have a wheelchair?



              15           A   It has a ramp.



              16           Q   Okay.  And are you able to use the



              17   voting machine, even though you're in a wheelchair?



              18           A   Yes, I can.



              19           Q   And how does that work?



              20           A   They lower it for me.



              21           Q   And how do you get from your house to



              22   borough hall to vote?



              23           A   Usually someone will drive me there.



              24   Since it's just down at the corner really,



              25   sometimes my son will just push me in my
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               1   wheelchair.



               2           Q   Okay.  And what kind of a wait do you



               3   encounter at the polling place to vote?



               4           A   Most times it goes very smoothly and I



               5   don't have much wait at all.



               6           Q   Okay.  And do you ever vote by absentee



               7   ballot?



               8           A   No.



               9           Q   And if there were going to be an



              10   election today, would you be able to -- would you



              11   be physically able to get to borough hall to vote?



              12           A   Yes.



              13           Q   And today if there were going to be an



              14   election, would you be able to sign a legal



              15   declaration saying that you were unable to attend



              16   because of illness or physical disability?



              17               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the form of



              18   the question.  It's leading.  Rephrase it.



              19               MR. GEFFEN:  I'll rephrase it.



              20   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              21           Q   Do you currently have an illness that



              22   would keep you from getting there today if there



              23   were an election today?



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; leading.



              25   BY MR. GEFFEN:
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               1           Q   Okay.  I can rephrase this.



               2               If there were an election today, do you



               3   think that you would be able to vote in person or



               4   not?



               5               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; leading.



               6               MR. GEFFEN:  Can we go off the record



               7   for a moment.



               8               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Going off the



               9   record.  Time on video is 14:33.



              10               MR. GEFFEN:  I'm trying to save some



              11   time here.



              12               MR. SCHMIDT:  No.  I understand.  But I



              13   just don't want you to testify for her, so --



              14               MR. GEFFEN:  I don't think I am, but is



              15   there some other way I could ask this question that



              16   would satisfy you.



              17               MR. SCHMIDT:  How do you vote?



              18               What's your health status currently?



              19               Let her describe it.  That's all I'm



              20   asking for.  I don't want you to testify.  I don't



              21   think you want that, either, on the record.  You



              22   don't want your testimony here.



              23               MR. GEFFEN:  Nobody wants that.



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  I appreciate -- I really



              25   do; I appreciate the fact that you're trying to
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               1   expedite things.



               2               MR. GEFFEN:  Okay.  We'll do it that



               3   way, then.



               4               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We're now back on



               5   the record.  Time on video is 14:34.



               6   BY MR. GEFFEN:



               7           Q   Is there any reason that you would feel



               8   differently about voting in person versus voting by



               9   absentee ballot?



              10           A   Yes.



              11           Q   And what would that be?



              12           A   I like to vote in person because I want



              13   to make sure that I'm being counted.  If I would



              14   send an absentee ballot in, possibly it could get



              15   lost in the mail.



              16           Q   I may have already asked you:  How long



              17   have you been voting at borough hall?



              18           A   Ever since I lived in Womelsdorf,



              19   48 years.



              20           Q   And do you see familiar people when you



              21   go to vote?



              22           A   Indeed I do.



              23           Q   Now, did you vote in the November 2012



              24   election?



              25           A   I did.
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               1           Q   And when you went that time, did anyone



               2   say anything to you about photo ID?



               3           A   We --



               4               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; hearsay.



               5               MR. GEFFEN:  I'm not asking her for the



               6   truth of the matter asserted.  I'm just asking her



               7   whether anybody said anything to her.



               8               MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.



               9   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              10           Q   So you may answer the question.



              11           A   I'm sorry.



              12           Q   I'll repeat it.



              13               When you went to vote in November of



              14   last year, did anyone say anything to you about



              15   photo ID?



              16           A   I asked them.  They didn't bring it up.



              17   I asked them.  And at that point they didn't know



              18   what I would have to do.  They just said I was okay



              19   then, because I didn't have to have one in



              20   November.



              21           Q   And when you say you asked "them," whom



              22   are you referring to?



              23           A   What do you --



              24           Q   The people --



              25           A   What do you call them?
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               1           Q   Are you talking about people who were



               2   at the borough hall?



               3           A   The people who are -- are asking me to



               4   sign in.



               5           Q   Okay.  The poll workers?



               6           A   Okay.  There's a good word.  Use that



               7   one.  I couldn't think of one.



               8           Q   And what did they say to you about --



               9   did they say anything to you about what kind of ID



              10   you could vote with?



              11           A   What kind of what?



              12           Q   Of ID you could vote with.



              13           A   They asked if I had a --



              14               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection; hearsay.



              15               MR. GEFFEN:  Again, I'm not asking her



              16   for the truth of the matter.  I'm asking her what



              17   somebody said to her for its effect on her.



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  You asked her what they



              19   said to her.



              20               MR. GEFFEN:  Right.  I'm not -- I'm not



              21   going to offer her testimony about what somebody



              22   said to her as for the truth of what that person



              23   said.



              24               MR. SCHMIDT:  I understand that.  I



              25   think you need to rephrase it.
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               1   BY MR. GEFFEN:



               2           Q   Did you learn anything when you went



               3   there that day about what types of photo ID you



               4   could use to vote with?



               5           A   Well, they did say if I had a passport,



               6   I could use that; but I didn't really feel I needed



               7   one to go to the corner.



               8           Q   Anything else they told you about, what



               9   kind of photo ID?



              10           A   They asked about a driver's license.



              11   But every -- see, everybody knows everybody, and



              12   they all know my situation, you know.  So they



              13   already know that I can't drive.  I'm not allowed



              14   to drive because of my physical disabilities.



              15           Q   Okay.  Well, let me ask you a few more



              16   questions about your ID situation.



              17               Have you ever had a Pennsylvania



              18   driver's license?



              19           A   Yes.



              20           Q   And do you have one, an active driver's



              21   license right now?



              22           A   No, I do not.



              23           Q   When was the last time you had an



              24   active driver's license?



              25           A   Back in '95.
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               1           Q   Okay.



               2           A   1995.



               3           Q   And do you have a U.S. passport?



               4           A   No, I do not.



               5           Q   Do you have any other ID with your



               6   picture on it?



               7           A   No, I do not.



               8           Q   And have you ever tried to get a new ID



               9   from PennDOT?



              10           A   Yes, I have.



              11           Q   When did you do that?



              12           A   Before the election in November of



              13   2012.



              14           Q   Do you remember how far before the



              15   election?  Was it a long time before the election



              16   or --



              17           A   No.  It was maybe the end of October,



              18   beginning of November.



              19           Q   Okay.  And where did you go to do that?



              20           A   I had to go to Shillington,



              21   Pennsylvania.



              22           Q   Is that the nearest PennDOT location?



              23           A   I guess basically you could go to



              24   Lebanon.  I'm thinking it's probably six of one and



              25   half dozen of another.
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               1           Q   Do you know about how far away the



               2   Shillington PennDOT location is?



               3           A   Well, it takes us about 45 minutes or



               4   more to get there, depending, of course, on



               5   traffic.



               6           Q   How did you get there?



               7           A   I had friends from Reading come up and



               8   pick me up and take me there.  We made a special



               9   trip to try to get ID.



              10           Q   And how far away is Reading from here?



              11           A   15, 20 miles.



              12           Q   Now, your two sons that you mentioned,



              13   do they live here in Womelsdorf?



              14           A   Yes, they do.



              15           Q   And do you ever get rides from your



              16   sons?



              17           A   Yes, I do.



              18           Q   Okay.  And I think you mentioned that



              19   you've gotten a ride from one son to the polling



              20   place; is that right?



              21           A   Yes.



              22           Q   What about the grocery store?  How do



              23   you get groceries?



              24           A   My son shops.



              25           Q   Do you go to the grocery store too?
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               1           A   No.  I couldn't tell you the last time



               2   I went.



               3           Q   Okay.  What about doctors'



               4   appointments?  How do you get to doctors'



               5   appointments?



               6           A   I often have to -- if my son is not



               7   available, then I have to call friends who, like I



               8   said earlier, have to come all the way up from



               9   Reading and take me wherever I need to go.



              10           Q   Are your sons employed?



              11           A   Yes, they are.



              12           Q   And what kind of work do they do or



              13   where do they work?



              14           A   My oldest son works at Reading Alloys,



              15   which is located in Robesonia.  And my youngest



              16   son -- that's a hard one.



              17           Q   Maybe I should ask this way:  What kind



              18   of work does your youngest son do?



              19           A   He works construction.



              20           Q   What kind of hours does your son who



              21   works construction work?



              22           A   He has horrendous hours.  He oftentimes



              23   will leave at 4:30, 5 o'clock in the morning and



              24   doesn't get home until 9 o'clock at night, because



              25   oftentimes -- I know I'm going on and on; but he
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               1   doesn't have one destination.  He may have to go to



               2   Jersey.  He may have to go to Timbuktu to work that



               3   day.



               4           Q   And the son who works at Reading



               5   Alloys, what kind of hours does he work?



               6           A   I believe it's basically from 7:00 to



               7   3:00.



               8           Q   And does that son have any family



               9   members to take care of?



              10           A   Yes, he does.  His wife at this point



              11   is in a very bad place to be.  She had a knee



              12   replaced.  Unfortunately, the knee was faulty, and



              13   it was infected.  And she had five surgeries in



              14   less than four months.



              15               And she -- she's home from the hospital



              16   now, but she is in bed constantly -- well, the bed



              17   is in the living room, but she -- she cannot get up



              18   and walk around.  She must stay in bed.



              19           Q   Now, your friends from Reading, do



              20   they -- the ones who drove you to PennDOT that you



              21   mentioned, do they often give you rides to places?



              22           A   Yes.  They would like to take me a lot



              23   more places, but they don't fully understand my



              24   pain situation.



              25           Q   Okay.  Do any of the people who give
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               1   you rides have a vehicle with a wheelchair lift?



               2           A   No, they do not.



               3           Q   So how do you get in and out of the



               4   car?



               5           A   They put the wheelchair as close to the



               6   door as we can.  We have a little stepstool that I



               7   step on first, and I kind of back into it.  And I



               8   have a cushion that swivels.  You back in and you



               9   sit down and swivel yourself into the seat.



              10           Q   Okay.  And you mentioned that you went



              11   to the PennDOT location in Shillington; is that



              12   right?



              13           A   That's correct.



              14           Q   Is the process you just described how



              15   you got in and out of the car on that trip?



              16           A   Yes.



              17           Q   Now, what happened when you went into



              18   the Shillington PennDOT office?



              19           A   I told them that I was there to get an



              20   ID card so I could vote.  And the lady got a paper



              21   and circled some stuff on this paper and handed me



              22   the paper.  And she said it would be $13.50.



              23               And I said, "I was under the impression



              24   that it was for free."



              25               But I started to get my money out.  And
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               1   she said, "Oh, we don't take cash.  You have to



               2   either have a check or a money order."



               3               Well, I didn't have either one.  And I



               4   asked her, "What's wrong with cash?"  But they



               5   don't accept cash.



               6               So she told me that -- it's actually in



               7   a mall where this PennDOT is.  And she said I could



               8   go up to the other end of the mall and get a money



               9   order up there, which would entail getting in the



              10   vehicle, driving up there, getting out, going in,



              11   coming out, getting back in, and -- it's just too



              12   much.  I can't do all those things at one time.



              13           Q   You mentioned a piece of paper, and I



              14   want to show you a document.  This has been stamped



              15   for production as Vote-2255 through '56.  It's a



              16   double-sided, single-paged document.  And I believe



              17   it's been identified as Trial Exhibit 4130.



              18               Would you look at this document for a



              19   moment.



              20           A   Uh-huh.



              21           Q   Is this the paper form you were



              22   referring to?



              23           A   That's it.



              24           Q   And I noticed there's some circles and



              25   an X written on this page.
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               1           A   Correct.



               2           Q   Who wrote those?



               3           A   The lady down there did.



               4           Q   Okay.  Did you get a new ID card on



               5   that visit?



               6           A   No, I did not.



               7           Q   And have you subsequently gotten any



               8   new ID card?



               9           A   No, I have not.



              10           Q   You mentioned that you were -- I think



              11   you said you were under the impression that you



              12   could get one for free?



              13           A   Correct.



              14           Q   What made you think that you could get



              15   one for free?



              16           A   I heard it on TV.



              17           Q   And have you ever seen any



              18   advertisements about the voter ID law?



              19           A   Yes.



              20           Q   And do you remember when you saw those



              21   advertisements?



              22           A   Well, prior to me going and trying to



              23   get one.



              24           Q   Okay.  Have you seen any since the



              25   November elections?
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               1           A   I don't believe I have.



               2           Q   And have you heard of something called



               3   the Department of State ID card?



               4           A   No.  I have no idea what that is.



               5           Q   Have you ever had your driving



               6   privileges suspended or revoked or disqualified?



               7           A   No.



               8           Q   When was the last time you drove,



               9   roughly?



              10           A   Back in -- probably '94.



              11           Q   What did you think when the clerk told



              12   you that it would cost 13.50 to get a new ID card?



              13           A   Well, at first I thought, Well, I guess



              14   I heard wrong.  But then I said to her, "I thought



              15   they said on TV that it was free."



              16               And she was -- she was not a happy



              17   helper.  She -- it was basically like, take it or



              18   leave it.  This is the way it is.  Do you want it



              19   or don't you?  That's the feeling I got.



              20           Q   Okay.  How long did this whole trip



              21   take, from when you left your house to when you got



              22   back into your house?



              23           A   I would say a little more than two



              24   hours.



              25           Q   Okay.  And how did you feel when you
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               1   got home?



               2           A   I was in great pain.  I have a lot of



               3   difficulty sitting and getting around.  So --



               4           Q   And have you gone back to the



               5   Shillington PennDOT to try again since then?



               6           A   No, I have not.



               7           Q   And why not?



               8           A   I guess I was just very frustrated,



               9   because it was a painful trip and she was not a



              10   pleasant, happy helper.  And I guess probably in



              11   the back of my mind I thought, well, perhaps one



              12   day when -- like when I have a doctor visit



              13   scheduled, maybe we can do two things in the same



              14   day.



              15           Q   Has there ever been an occasion like



              16   that since then?



              17           A   Actually, no.



              18           Q   Do you have access to the Internet?



              19           A   No, I do not.



              20           Q   Have you ever used the Internet?



              21           A   No, I have not.



              22           Q   Do you ever go to a public library?



              23           A   Not any longer.  I used to be able to



              24   get up to the one here in Womelsdorf, but I can't



              25   go that far anymore.

�                                                                          23



               1           Q   Okay.  Is voting important to you?



               2           A   Yes, it is.



               3           Q   Could you tell me why.



               4           A   I think it should be important to all



               5   of us.  We all have a stake in what's going on in



               6   our life, and we need to respect the people who



               7   went before us and went through all kinds of grief



               8   to give us that right.  We need to take advantage



               9   of it.



              10               MR. GEFFEN:  Thank you.  I have no more



              11   questions at this time.  I reserve the right to



              12   redirect examination.



              13                    CROSS-EXAMINATION



              14   BY MR. SCHMIDT:



              15           Q   Good afternoon, Ms. Norton.  My name is



              16   Kevin Schmidt.  I just have a few follow-up



              17   questions.



              18               Ma'am, how did you become a witness in



              19   this lawsuit?



              20           A   I'm sorry.  I didn't hear you.



              21           Q   How did you become a witness in this



              22   lawsuit?



              23           A   I don't know.



              24           Q   Did someone call you on the telephone?



              25           A   Yes.  And we discussed the difficulty
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               1   of not being able to get an ID and -- it was a



               2   young lady that I talked with.



               3           Q   Do you remember her name, ma'am?



               4           A   No.  That I don't remember.



               5           Q   Do you remember how she identified



               6   herself?  Where she was from?



               7           A   No, I don't.



               8           Q   Did she tell you she was with any



               9   organization, like the League of Women's Voters,



              10   for example?



              11           A   I don't believe she said that.



              12           Q   What did you tell her during your



              13   conversation?



              14           A   That I was trying to get an ID and I



              15   was having difficulty doing it.  And then she asked



              16   what I meant I was having -- because apparently it



              17   should not be this difficult.



              18               And so I told her what I've just told



              19   you people about what I went through and how I



              20   tried to get one.  And then she asked if I would



              21   talk to this young man.



              22           Q   That's Attorney Geffen sitting to my



              23   left?



              24           A   Correct.



              25           Q   At any time during your conversation,
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               1   did anyone offer to help you get identification to



               2   vote?



               3           A   Well, they didn't actually say, Would



               4   you like me to come and get you and take you



               5   somewhere or something like that.  Nothing like



               6   that happened.



               7               But she did say that he would talk with



               8   me and perhaps we could get some things



               9   straightened out.  I'm trying to remember how she



              10   worded it, you know.  It's difficult.



              11               But anyway...



              12           Q   But no one during that conversation



              13   provided you an offer of assistance to get an



              14   identification to vote?



              15           A   No, not really, no.



              16           Q   How about in your conversation with



              17   Attorney Geffen?  Was there any offer of assistance



              18   to get identification to vote?



              19           A   Well, he discussed what we're doing



              20   now, sitting and talking about it and kind of



              21   airing my problems to see if we can't come up with



              22   an answer, because there's a lot of people in the



              23   same spot I'm in that you just -- you people who



              24   drive, we don't -- when you can drive, you don't



              25   think about it.  You just do it.  You hop in and
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               1   you go.



               2               And you don't understand the problems



               3   it creates when you can't do that.  You hate to be



               4   imposing on people.  People will say to you,



               5   "Anything I can do to help?"  But nothing is handy.



               6   Nothing is local.  We don't have a taxicab.  We



               7   don't have a bus.  I mean, if we had a bus, I



               8   wouldn't be able to take a bus, you know.



               9               It's -- I have to depend on other



              10   people for everything, and I'm a stand-on-your-own



              11   kind of guy.  And it's very -- it's tough for me to



              12   ask people for help, even though I know, if they



              13   can, if they're available, they're more than happy



              14   to do it.  But I hate imposing on people.



              15           Q   So you have opportunities for people to



              16   help you, like your sons and --



              17           A   Yes.



              18           Q   Hopefully when your daughter-in-law



              19   heals up, she'll be able to help you as well;



              20   correct?



              21           A   Yes.



              22           Q   At any time during your conversations



              23   with your involvement in this lawsuit as a witness,



              24   did anybody offer you assistance to help get an ID?



              25           A   Well, I assume that that's what our

�                                                                          27



               1   meeting today is, to help me be able to get aimed



               2   in the right direction.  I mean, nobody actually



               3   has come to me and said, Oh, it's simple.  All you



               4   have to do is thus and so.  Nobody has done that,



               5   no.



               6           Q   What's your understanding of why you're



               7   testifying today?



               8           A   Well, hopefully to makes things easier



               9   for everybody that has this type of a problem, to



              10   make it more accessible.  I mean, when you're on TV



              11   telling me I need to have a voter ID, tell me right



              12   then and there where to go and how to get it.  That



              13   would be helpful.



              14               If I knew exactly where -- I mean, we



              15   went to PennDOT, but that was a suggestion from my



              16   friends.  "Why don't we try going there?"  We



              17   weren't even sure that it was possible.



              18           Q   And did any of that information come



              19   out to you in your conversations with Attorney



              20   Geffen or the woman who called you in advance of



              21   Attorney Geffen about where to go, about what to do



              22   to get an ID, about how they could help you?



              23           A   No.



              24           Q   Ms. Norton, what is the furthest you



              25   travel from your home here in Womelsdorf?
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               1           A   To the doctor's, which is at the --



               2   basically at the Reading Hospital.  So that's 15,



               3   20 miles, whatever it is.



               4           Q   And how long does that take you to get



               5   there?



               6           A   Three quarters of an hour to an hour,



               7   depending on the traffic.



               8           Q   Okay.  So is it fair to say you don't



               9   have any problem traveling in a car for an hour?



              10           A   I have problems, because it's very



              11   painful for me to sit.  And pain really rules your



              12   life, you know.  So -- but I get there.



              13           Q   You can do it, is what you're telling



              14   me?



              15               Now, during the course of your day, do



              16   you have to stand up with your walker?



              17           A   Yes.



              18           Q   Or do you predominantly stay in your



              19   wheelchair for the course of the day?



              20           A   Mostly I scoot around in my chair.



              21           Q   What are the ages of your sons?



              22           A   40 and 50.



              23           Q   And you said you had a



              24   step-granddaughter and a granddaughter; is that



              25   correct?
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               1           A   Yes.



               2           Q   Okay.  And what are their ages?



               3           A   Well, my granddaughter is 25.  And I'm



               4   going to guess at the step-granddaughter.  I'm



               5   going to guess that she's probably 35.



               6           Q   Do they live local as well?



               7           A   At this point in time, I have no idea



               8   where my granddaughter lives.  My



               9   step-granddaughter lives in Womelsdorf.



              10           Q   And does she drive?



              11           A   Yes.



              12           Q   And does she ever offer to drive you



              13   around and take you places?



              14           A   No.



              15           Q   How come?



              16           A   She's got three girls, and she works.



              17   And the girls are all -- you know, there is dance



              18   classes.  There's this, that, and the other thing.



              19           Q   Oh, I know.  I know.  I have a son and



              20   a daughter that I cart around myself.



              21           A   So you know you spend half your life in



              22   a vehicle.



              23           Q   So the last time you attempted to go --



              24   excuse me.  Strike that.



              25               The last time you went to PennDOT was
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               1   in late October of 2012; is that correct, ma'am?



               2           A   Yes.



               3           Q   And you went to the Shillington



               4   driver's licensing center?



               5           A   Yes.



               6           Q   Have you made any efforts since that



               7   time to go back and try and get an identification



               8   card to vote?



               9           A   No, I have not.  Would you like to know



              10   the reason?



              11           Q   Let me ask you another question.



              12           A   Okay.



              13           Q   Have you ever called PennDOT to see if



              14   you can get special accommodations for your pain



              15   and because you're in a wheelchair now?



              16           A   No, I haven't.



              17           Q   Have you ever called PennDOT to ask



              18   them if you could send information through the mail



              19   so that you didn't have to travel to a driver's



              20   licensing center and get --



              21           A   No, I haven't done that.  I assume you



              22   have to be there if you're -- you have to get a



              23   picture taken.



              24           Q   Are you willing to do that, ma'am?



              25           A   Well, I was there thinking that's what
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               1   would -- you know, that it was going to -- she was



               2   going to say, "Okay.  I'll take your picture.



               3   Here's your thing and be on your way."  But it



               4   didn't pan out that way.



               5           Q   Are you willing to call them back and



               6   see if they could make accommodations for you --



               7   "they" being PennDOT -- so that you could get an



               8   identification card to vote?



               9           A   Yes.  I imagine that's what I'll have



              10   to do.  But the past -- this past year has been



              11   very difficult for me.  I've had many, many falls.



              12   And I've in turn had setbacks.



              13           Q   When is your next doctor's appointment,



              14   ma'am?



              15           A   I'm sorry?



              16           Q   When is your next doctor's appointment?



              17           A   Well, I was just there in June -- three



              18   months.



              19           Q   So would that be September?



              20           A   Yes.



              21           Q   September?  Okay.



              22               And do you know how you'll get to your



              23   doctor's appointment in September?



              24           A   Probably I'll have to ask my friends



              25   from Reading to come and get me, because
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               1   unfortunately, the boys can't take me because they



               2   work.



               3           Q   And these are the same friends that



               4   took you to the Shillington driver licensing



               5   center?



               6           A   Yes, yes.



               7           Q   Okay.  Do you think that they would be



               8   willing to do so again, ma'am?



               9           A   Yes.



              10           Q   Ma'am, has any doctor prohibited you



              11   from traveling by car?



              12           A   No.



              13           Q   Has any doctor placed any physical



              14   restrictions on you?



              15           A   They tell me to do what I can, what



              16   little I can do.  Try to keep moving.



              17           Q   Is there any -- have they ever advised



              18   you to not sit for a certain amount of time or not



              19   stand for a certain amount of time?



              20           A   Oh, yeah, they always tell me that.



              21   You know, it's -- I spend most of my day laying



              22   either on the sofa or on my bed, because sitting is



              23   extremely painful for me.  I have rods and pins in



              24   my back, and it's not really conducive to sitting.



              25           Q   Ma'am, I want you to take a look at
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               1   that document that Attorney Geffen showed to you



               2   earlier, which has been previously marked as



               3   Vote-2255; and the second page of it has Vote-2256.



               4               Is your name on there, ma'am?



               5           A   No.



               6           Q   Did you ever start to fill it out,



               7   assuming this is the document you got when you went



               8   to PennDOT in Shillington?



               9           A   No, I didn't fill anything out, because



              10   we couldn't conclude our business because I didn't



              11   have a check or a money order.  I only had cash.



              12   So I didn't bother filling the paperwork out.



              13           Q   So is it fair to say that none of the



              14   writing on the document is yours?



              15           A   Correct.



              16           Q   Do you know whose it is?



              17           A   I have no idea.



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  I have nothing further,



              19   ma'am.  Thank you very much.



              20               THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.



              21                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION



              22   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              23           Q   I have just a few questions to follow



              24   up on some of the things Mr. Schmidt discussed.



              25               At one point Mr. Schmidt asked you a
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               1   question:  Why haven't you made another attempt to



               2   go back to PennDOT?  And it sounded like there was



               3   something you wanted to say.  What is it that you



               4   wanted to say?



               5           A   I thought I did say it.  I've had many



               6   falls, and I've been set back in my abilities to



               7   get in and out.



               8           Q   And that all happened since the last



               9   time you went to PennDOT?



              10           A   Yes.



              11           Q   Okay.  And you mentioned a three-month



              12   doctor appointment.  Do you regularly visit the



              13   doctor once every three months?  Is that how I



              14   should take that?



              15           A   Yes.  That's my back doctor.



              16           Q   And are there other doctors you go to



              17   on a regular basis?



              18           A   My family doctor, whatever you want to



              19   call him.



              20           Q   Okay.  How do you feel after you get



              21   home from one of those doctor's appointments?



              22           A   Totally wiped out, exhausted, in pain.



              23   You come in the door; you grab your pills and you



              24   crash and burn.



              25           Q   And how often when you have one of
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               1   those doctor's appointments do you tack on an



               2   additional errand while you're out and about?



               3           A   Very rarely.  It's like, let's get



               4   there and get home as fast as we can.



               5           Q   Okay.  And --



               6           A   I didn't even do -- I know nobody



               7   cares, but I didn't do one bit of Christmas



               8   shopping, not one.  Because I just -- I'm just not



               9   up to it.



              10           Q   I understand.



              11               The last thing I wanted to ask you



              12   about, Mr. Schmidt asked you:  Did you know whose



              13   writing was on this form, this exhibit that we



              14   showed you?



              15               Do you know that -- do you know the



              16   name of any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with



              17   that day?



              18               MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection to the form of



              19   the question; assumes facts not on the record.



              20               MR. GEFFEN:  I asked her whether she



              21   knows any -- I'll ask her this question.



              22   BY MR. GEFFEN:



              23           Q   When you went to PennDOT in November or



              24   October of last year, did you catch the names of



              25   any of the PennDOT personnel you spoke with?
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               1           A   No.  I don't think she bothered



               2   introducing herself.  You knew who she was.  She



               3   said, "Next."  You went up and you told her what



               4   you wanted, and that was the end of our business.



               5           Q   Okay.  And who gave you this form that



               6   we've been looking at?



               7           A   The lady who was -- said "next."



               8           Q   And who wrote these circles and X on



               9   this form?



              10           A   She did.



              11           Q   Okay.  But you don't know her name?



              12           A   No, I have no idea what her name was.



              13           Q   Okay.  I have no more questions.



              14           A   Okay.



              15                   RECROSS-EXAMINATION



              16   BY MR. SCHMIDT:



              17           Q   Ms. Norton, just one question.  Did you



              18   see her make these marks on the form?



              19           A   Yes, I did.



              20               MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  No further



              21   questions.  Thank you very much.



              22               THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.



              23               THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  This concludes the



              24   videotaped deposition of Patricia Norton.  Time on



              25   video is 15:07.
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               1               (Videotaped deposition concluded



               2               at 15:07 p.m.)
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